Southern University System
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

MEETING

9:00 AM
Friday, November 27, 2015

STRAND 12 MEETING ROOM
2nd Floor, Hyatt Regency
601 Loyola Avenue
New Orleans, Louisiana



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
9:00 a.m.
Friday, November 27, 2015
Strand 12 Meeting Room
2" Floor, Hyatt Regency
601 Loyola Avenue
New Orleans, Louisiana

AGENDA
. Call to Order and Invocation
. Roll Call
. Adoption of the Agenda
. Public Comments

. Election of Board Officers for 2016
A. Chairman
B. Vice Chairman

. Special Presentations

. Action Items

A. Minutes of the October 23, 2015, regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors

B. Request Approval of Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (CEA) Between the City of New
Orleans and the New Orleans Redevelopment Authority (NORA) and the Southern
University Law Center (SULC)

C. Request Approval to transfer funds to SUSLA as authorized upon the BOR’s approval
of the 1% quarter GRAD Act Performance Improvement Contract Report (BA-7 #3)

D. Request Approval to use prior year funds, SUBR

E. Approval of Personnel Action on Positions greater than $60,000

Name Title Salary
Christopher Guillory Institutional Research Director
New Appointment SUBR $85,000
Greta Wilkes, MD Director, Student Health Center
New Appointment, SUBR $110,000

F. Request Approval of Sabbatical and Medical Leave of Absence, SUBR
1. Dr. Piu-Man Lam
2. Michael Smyser




G. Request Approval of Employee Eligibility Requirements for the Affordable Care Act
(ACA) Policy

H. Request Approval of Drug Free Workplace Policy-Amended

Resolution for Conferral of Degrees Fall 2015

1. SUBR

2. SUNO

3.SULC

4. SUSLA

J. Resolutions

8. Informational Items
A. Update on Local Charter Authorization
B. JD and MBA Dual Program Update
C. System President’s Report
D. Campus Reports

9. Other Business

10. Adjournment



Southern University and A&M College System
Board of Supervisors Meeting
2" Floor; J.S. Clark Administration Building
Baton Rouge, Louisiana
9a.m.
Friday, October 23, 2015

Minutes
The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was convened by Chairman Leon R.
Tarver Il. The Reverend Donald R. Henry gave the invocation. The Board paused for a moment of
silent reflection for the student that was murdered at Texas Southern University and also for SU Board
employee Lisa Green.

PRESENT: ABSENT:

Dr. Leon R. Tarver I, Chair Dr. Curman L. Gaines

Atty. Tony M. Clayton Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr.-Vice Chair
Mr. Raymond M. Fondel, Jr. Mr. Dominique Diamond

Reverend Joe R. Gant, Jr. Reverend Samuel C. Tolbert

Reverend Donald Ray Henry
Mr. Richard T. Hilliard

Mr. Myron K. Lawson

Atty. Patrick Magee

Mr. Darren G. Mire

Mr. Mike A. Small

Mrs. Ann A. Smith

Dr. Rani G. Whitfield

UNIVERSITY PERSONNEL ATTENDING

System President-Chancellor Ray L. Belton

System Vice President Flandus McClinton, Jr.

System Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost Dr. M. Christopher Brown Il
Chancellor Victor Ukpolo (SUNO)

Interim Chancellors Adell Brown (SUAREC), John Pierre (SULC), and Sam Gilliam (SUSLA)

BOARD COUNSEL
Atty. Winston DeCuir, Sr. and Atty. Tracie Woods




FINANCE COMMITTEE
9a.m.
Friday, October 23, 2015
Board of Supervisors Meeting Room
2" Floor; J.S. Clark Administration Building
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Minutes
The Finance Committee was called to order by Attorney Tony Clayton.
2. Roll call

Present: Atty. Tony M. Clayton, Chair, Mr. Michael Small, Mr. Myron Lawson, and Atty. Patrick
Magee

Absent: Dr. Curman Gaines, Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr.

A quorum was established.

3. Adoption of the Agenda

On the motion of Atty. Patrick Magee seconded by Mr. Michael Small the agenda was adopted
as printed.

Motion carried unanimously.
4. Public Comments
None.

5. Action Item
A. Approval of FY 2016-17 Budget Requests and Addenda

Board & System

Southern University at Baton Rouge

Southern University at New Orleans

Southern University at Shreveport

Southern University Law Center

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center

ok wnpRE

On the motion of Atty. Patrick Magee and seconded by Mr. Raymond Fondel the FY 2016-17
budget requests were approved.

Motion carried unanimously.
6. Other Business

None
7. Adjournment

On the motion of Atty. Patrick Magee and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson the committee
adjourned.

Motion carried unanimously.



PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
(Following the Finance Committee)
Friday, October 23, 2015
Board of Supervisors Meeting Room
2" Floor; J.S. Clark Administration Building
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Minutes

The Personnel Affairs Committee was called to order by Atty. Patrick Magee.

2. Roll Call

Present: Atty. Tony M. Clayton, Atty. Patrick Magee, Mrs. Ann Smith, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Mr. Myron
Lawson, and Dr. Leon R. Tarver Il

Absent: Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr. and Rev. Samuel Tolbert

A quorum was established.

3. Adoption of the Agenda

On the motion of Dr. Leon R. Tarver Il and seconded by Mr. Raymond Fondel the agenda was
adopted.

4. Public Comments

Dr. Sonya Hester, faculty senate president, Southern University-Shreveport (SUSLA) spoke to Board
members regarding the tenure and promotion process at SUSLA. Dr. Hester also distributed copies
of the SUSLA Tenure and Promotion timeline to Board members.

5. Action Iltems

A. Approval of Personnel Action on Positions greater than $60,000

On the motion of Mr. Raymond Fondel and seconded by Mr. Mike Small that all personnel
items submitted in Item 5A for consideration by the Board be approved.
Motion carried unanimously.

Recommendation for Tenure & Promotion, SUSLA for Kim Newlen-May

On the motion of Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Mrs. Ann Smith, that the
recommendation to approve the tenure and promotion request be deferred for one month.
After discussion of the issue, it was suggested that the request be reviewed by Vice
President of Academic Affairs Dr. M. Christopher Brown. Mr. Myron Lawson stated that the
adjustment in salary should be retroactive to October 23, if approved.

Roll call vote taken. Yeas: Atty. Tony M. Clayton, Atty. Patrick Magee, Mrs. Ann Smith, Mr.
Myron Lawson and Dr. Leon R. Tarver Il
Nays: Mr. Raymond Fondel

Motion carried unanimously.

6. Other Business

7.

None.

Adjournment
Upon the motion of Mrs. Ann Smith and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson the committee
adjourned.

Motion carried unanimously.



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
(Following the Personnel Affairs Committee)
Friday, October 23, 2015
Board of Supervisors Meeting Room
2" Floor; J.S. Clark Administration Building
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Minutes
Board Chair Dr. Leon R. Tarver Il called the meeting to order.
2. Roll Call

Present: Dr.Leon R. Tarver ll, Atty. Tony Clayton, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Rev. Donald
Ray Henry, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mr. Myron Lawson, Atty. Patrick Magee, Mr. Darren Mire, Mr. Michael
Small, Mrs. Ann Smith and Dr. Rani Whitfield

Absent: Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr., Mr. Dominique Diamond, Dr. Curman Gaines, and Rev. Samuel
Tolbert

A quorum was established.

3. Adoption of the Agenda
On the motion of Rev. Joe Gant and seconded by Atty. Patrick Magee the agenda was adopted with
the deletion of Item 5G: Approval of Thad Tatum Settlement Agreement.

Motion carried unanimously.
4. Public Comments

None.

5. Action Items
A. Minutes of the August 25, 2015 regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors

On the motion of Mr. Richard Hilliard seconded by Atty. Patrick Magee the following resolution was
approved.

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for the Southern University System, that the minutes of the
September 25, 2015, regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, be and it is hereby approved.

Motion carried unanimously.

B. Committee Reports and Recommendations

On the motion of Atty. Patrick Magee seconded by Mr. Richard Hillard, reports of the Finance
committee and the Personnel Affairs Committee were approved.

The motion carried unanimously.

1. FINANCE COMMITTEE

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, upon the recommendation of

the Finance Committee, that the FY 2016-17 budget requests for all SU System campuses be and
they are hereby approved.



Page Two
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes
October 23, 2015

2. PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, upon the recommendation of the
Personnel Affairs Committee, that the Administration’s recommendation for approval of positions
with salaries greater than $60,000 be and they are hereby approved.

Name Title/Campus Salary
Name Title/Campus Salary
Fareed Dawan Assistant Professor, Mechanical Engineering $70,000
New Appointment/SUBR
Carlos Thomas Asst. Professor of Management & Marketing $88,000
Transfer, SUBR
Rahim A. Smith Academic Counselor/Instructor of Law $65,000
New Appointment, SULC
Wendy Shea Associate Professor of Legal Analysis & Writing $81,885
Promotion, SULC
Angela Allen-Bell Associate Professor of Legal Analysis & Writing $81,885
Promotion, SULC
Tracie Woods Associate Professor of Legal Analysis & Writing $81,885
Promotion, SULC
Shelia Duplechain DeRouen Director, Title Il $83,000
New Appointment, SUBR
JoAnn Brown Director, Academy of Excellence/Grant writer $65,000
New Appointment/SUSLA

%k %k %k

Approval of SU System and SUBR Organizational Structure

Mr. Raymond Fondel made a motion to approve the organizational charts presented for the SU
System and SUBR campus. Atty. Patrick Magee seconded.

As chair of the Personnel Affairs Committee Atty. Patrick Magee suggested that all departments
of the university including the Board of Supervisors, review whether or not best practices are
being used to ensure effective and efficient administrative operations with the new
organizational structure. Dr. Tarver suggested that the matter could be a topic of discussion
during the January 2016 Board meeting.

After discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the
Administration’s recommendation for approval of the SU System and SUBR
organizational structures be and they are hereby approved.

C. Authorization to Search for Chancellor, Southern University Agricultural Research and
Extension Center (SUAREC)
Dr. Ray Belton made a request to the Board to form a search committee to select a
candidate for the position of Chancellor of the Southern University Agricultural Research
and Extension Center.

Upon the motion of Rev. Joe Gant and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson approval was
granted to President-Chancellor Belton to form a search committee to select a
chancellor for the Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center.

Motion carried unanimously.



Page Three

SU Board of Supervisors Minutes

October 23, 2015

F.

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the
Administration’s request to search for the position of Chancellor for the Southern
University Agricultural Research and Extension Center be and hereby approved.

Appeal Hearing, Shaboyd P. Cannon
Upon the motion of Atty. Patrick Magee and seconded by Mr. Raymond Fondel the
Board convened for executive session.

Upon the motion by Mr. Raymond Fondel and seconded by Rev. Joe Gant, the Board
reconvened.

Atty. Patrick Magee made a motion to deny the appeal and seconded by Mr. Raymond
Fondel.

Atty. Tony Clayton made a substitute motion that after hearing the appeal of Mr.
Shaboyd Cannon in executive session the Board supports the recommendation of the
administration of the Southern University Law Center.

Roll Call Vote Taken: Yeas: Dr. Leon R. Tarver Il, Atty. Tony Clayton, Mr. Raymond
Fondel, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Rev. Donald Ray Henry, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mr. Myron
Lawson, , Mr. Darren Mire, Mr. Michael Small, and Mrs. Ann Smith.

Nays: Atty. Patrick Magee and Dr. Rani Whitfield
The motion passed unanimously.

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the
Administration’s recommendation for approval of its decision concerning Shaboyd P.
Cannon be and it is hereby approved.

Approval of Sexual Assault and Title IX Policies

Policies for SUBR, SUNO, SUSLA, SULC and amended policies for the SU System were
presented for consideration by the Board. Upon the motion by Mr. Myron Lawson and
seconded by Atty. Tony Clayton, that the policies presented be approved.

The motion passed unanimously.
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the

Administration’s recommendation for approval Sexual Assault and Title IX Policies be
and they are hereby approved.

Item omitted from the agenda



Page Four

SU Board of Supervisors Minutes

October 23, 2015

G. Resolutions

The Board approved the following resolutions.

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the resolutions of
condolences to the families named below be and they are hereby approved:

Lisa Green administrative assistant, Board of Supervisors, on the death of her
mother Rosie Hebert Trusclair.
Family of Lori Groves White, an SU alum who died October 21.

6. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

A. Priority Projects Updates, by campus

Mr. Flandus McClinton provided board members with a report of the priority
projects and called special attention to three items: repair of the ravine at Steptoe
Avenue is complete, work has begun on the American Disabilities Act consent
decree work at T.T. Allain, and the Millie Charles School of Social Work is complete.

Interim Financial Report as of September 2015, SUS
Vice President McClinton presented information on revenue and expenditures for
all SU System campuses. A copy of the reports were included in the Board packet.

Drones, All-Terrain Vehicles and Traffic

Atty. Tony Clayton stated that he would like to see the administration develop a
policy on drones being flown over the campus. He also stated that the use of all-
terrain vehicles be prohibited on campus with exceptions being granted to campus
employees and police officers. Additionally, he suggested a study be done on the
traffic situation on the campus on game days. Atty. Patrick Magee stated that the
University already has a plan in place for all-terrain vehicles and that the policies
that are in place should be enforced. He further stated that failure to enforce the
policies could result in liabilities for the University.

Update on SUSLA Chancellor Search

Dr. Ray Belton stated that there was a meeting on October 1 with the SUSLA
Chancellor Search Committee to solicit feedback about attributes for the next
chancellor. Advertisements have been placed in higher education
magazines/journals. December 1 is the deadline for applying. Dr. Belton anticipates
presenting candidates to the Board in early Spring 2016.

Update of SULC Chancellor Search

Dr. Belton met with the search committee on October 6 to give the charge to the
committee and to discuss qualifications for the next chancellor. A website has been
designed for dissemination of information to committee members and applicants.
Suggestions obtained from persons attending the meeting will be incorporated into
the job announcement. Dr. Belton stated that he anticipates presenting candidates
in mid-February to the Board for review.

System President’s Report
Dr. Ray Belton stated that he and members of the senior staff had visited the SUNO
campus to meet with faculty and staff and he thanked SUNO Chancellor Dr. Ukpolo



Page Five

SU Board of Supervisors Minutes

October 23, 2015

7.

for the invitation. He thanked Mr. Fondel and Rev. Tolbert for inviting him to the
Lake Charles area to visit with government and business leaders in the area. He also
attended meetings at the Board of Regents to learn more about the performance
based funding model being considered for implementation at colleges and
universities in the state. Mr. Fondel expressed his appreciation to President Belton
for visiting Lake Charles.

Campus Reports

Dr. Ray Belton discussed highlights of homecoming festivities and acknowledged the
inspirational message delivered by Rev. Joe Gant at the Alumni Federation’s Prayer
Breakfast. He stated that the family of Devon Gales attended the homecoming
game and announced that several companies had made monetary presentations to
the University during homecoming week. He reiterated that the traffic situation on
campus was less than desirable and stated that policies would be reviewed and the
situation would be examined and information would be brought back to the Board.
Aerial photographs of the campus on homecoming game day were distributed to
Board members for review.

Dr. Victor Ukpolo expressed appreciation to President Chancellor Belton for visiting
the SUNO campus. He stated that a team of visitors would be on the SUNO campus
for the reaffirmation of the accreditation of the College of Education. He also
invited members of the Board to the annual BASH event, a premier fundraiser for
the SUNO campus and stated that on November 4, a ground breaking ceremony for
the Millie Charles School of Social Work would be held. An invitation has been
extended to Ms. Millie Charles to attend the event.

Mr. Sam Gilliam representing SUSLA, distributed copies of a written report and
highlighted the fact that the SUSLA campus has purchased land near the campus
and held its first farmer’s market for the area because it is considered a food desert.
The University also had its national night out to interact with various segments of
the community. On October 12 the University sponsored its golf classic which raised
funds to support the school.

Dr. Adell Brown submitted a written report and gave an update on the activities of
the SUAREC including that the University participated in its first town hall meeting
via Twitter. Dr. Brown also stated that the SUAREC is having a gala on December 17
in commemoration of the 125" anniversary of land grant institutions.

Atty. John Pierre of the SU Law Center thanked Atty. Tony Clayton for serving as
guest speaker for the Law Center’s convocation and also thanked Dr. Belton for
attending stating that SBA president Eric Harrington is hosting an event for election
protection

OTHER BUSINESS

Dr. Belton announced that Rodney Braxton of Southern Strategies was in attendance at the
Board meeting. Also recognized was SBA President Mr. Eric Harrington who also attended
the meeting. Mr. Fondel questioned whether or not the University had a system in place for
reminding students to vote. Atty. Tony Clayton stated that everyone should participate in



Page Six
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes
October 23, 2015

the beautification of the campus and suggested that various groups adopt certain areas of
the campus for which they would be responsible. Dr. Rani Whitfield expressed his concern
for injured football player Devon Gales and suggested that Board members consider ways
that they could support Mr. Gales collectively when he returns to the campus. Atty. Tony
Clayton also suggested that the University consider inviting the football coach at the
University of Georgia to be the guest speaker at a commencement ceremony in the near
future along with Devon Gales.

8. ADJOURNMENT

Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson the meeting
adjourned.

Motion carried unanimously.



o SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAw CENTER
' 261 A. A. LENOIR HALL

= PasT OFFICE Box 9294

1 o~
o N 1.0“\'

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70B13-9284
OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR

(225) 771-2552

FAX (225) 771-2474

November 11, 2015

Dr. Ray L Belton, President/Chancellor
Southern University System

1.5, Clark Administration Building

4" Floor

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

RE: Request to Approve Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (CEA)
Between the City of New Orleans and the New Orleans Redevelopment Authority (NORA)
and the Southern University Law Center (SULC)

Dear Dr. Belton:

| am requesting that the enclosed CEA be presented to the Southern University System Board of
Supervisors for approval. The purpose of the CEA is for SULC students to receive experiential education
opportunities and to render assistance to the City's Department of Property management, its Code
Enforcement and Hearing Bureau, and NORA on researching titles on immovable property to reduce
blight.

SULC has acquired substantial expertise and experience over the |ast eight (8) years dealing with
adjudicated, heirship, and blighted properties through supervised projects. The projects will:

* Aid property owners in perfecting a merchantable title as part of a student experiential
educational project coordinated by the parties to this proposed agreement and

* Educate students, policy makers, and stakeholders about problems associated with heirship,
blighted, and adjudicated properties.

The Southern University Law Center’s involvement will provide meaningful opportunities for our
students to apply their classroom knowledge to real-world problems. These life lessons provide
valuable insight and experience that many of our students bring back to their home communities
throughout the state and nation and develop legal expertise that they incorporate into their
practices upon graduation,

“An Equal Educational Oppaortunity Insfitufion"



At this time, | would like to ask for your continued support of practical research on the
legal problems caused by heirship and adjudicated property by supporting the joint cooperative
endeavor agreement and presenting it to the Board of Supervisors for approval.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.
Yours Sincerely,

K Poe

n K. Pierre
nterim Chancellor-SULC

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY



COOPERATIVE ENDEAYOR AGREEMENT
CITY OF NEW ORLEANS,
THE NEVW ORLEANS REDELOPMENT AUTHORITY,
AND

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF SOUTIHERN UNIVERSITY AND
AGRICULTURAL AND MECHANICAL COLLEGE

THIS COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT (the “Agreemen:™) is made and
eorered into an this — day of 2015 and made effective January ©, 2015 {the
“Fifective Date”™), by and between the City of New Orleans, represented by Mitchell ). Landrien,
Mayor (the “City™), The New Orleans Redevelopmen: Authority, represented by leltrey P Hebert,
ity Lxceutive Directar (UNORATY and The Southern University Law Center, represented by John
K. Mgrre, ots Interin: Chancellor (the “SLLC™T.

WHERLAS, pursuant Arlicle 7, Section 14(CY of the Loulsiana Constitution of 1974, and
related statutes, and Secilon 9-314 of the Home Rule Charter af' the City o New Orleans, the City
may cnter 1nte conperative endeavors with the State of Louisiana, its politeal subdivisions end
carparationg, the United States and its apencies, and ary public ar privatle corporation, sssociation,
or individual witk regard to conperative Snancing and other economic development activities, the
procurerient and development of immovable property, juirt pianning and unplemeniaion of
nublic waorks, the joint use of facilities, joint rescarch ard propram implemeniation activitics, igint
funding initimives, and other similar activities in support of public education, community
deve.epment, housing rehabilitation, cconeric growth, and other public pumoses,

WHEREAS. the City's Department of Property Maenagement, its Code Enforcement and
Flearings Bureauw, and NORA have a need for trained immovable propenty researchers; and

WHEREAS, SULC is an aceredited scheol of law end has a need for opponunities for ity
studerts wo gain experiential learning oppanunities

WHEREAS, SLT.C offers courses to ity students thet jran ther in research of mmovahie
preperty; and

WHEREAS, the City, NORA, and 81UT.C destre 1o conperate for the valuasble public parposes
ol more etficient operazion of povernment and increased experiential clinical cducation
npporun:tics for SULC students,

NOW TIHEREFORE, he City and SULC, cach having the authority to do so, agroe as
foailinws:

[. OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES.
A, Obligations of SULC. SULC will:

Provide a list of interested students thet have completed the necessery coursework o

provide the siedents witk adequate trainiog to vendaect Pitle rescarch on immovable property.
2. In ¢oardination with the City and NORA, develop a work plen for the students that
provides the maximum learning opportunity fur the studer? and 1s satisfacony to aliow the student

Cooperative Endeavor Agreemernt Page 1 of 8
Ciry of Sew Orlewns and §1.1 .0



to camn credit toward ther Jurs Doctorate,

3, Dedicate atl least two (2% Public Interest [aw Fellowship opromunities to its law
students during the swmmer session of 2016 with the City’s Departiment of Property Management,
its Covge Brforcement and Flearings Bureaw, and NORA.

B. Obligations of the Ciy/NORA, The Cuy™NORA will:

1. Provide siitable eifice space and suppor tacilities o the SUT.C students,

2. Permiitne students to participate in thosce activities of the cach agency "o the extent

that such participation provides experiential education to students and provides value 1o the
AEENCY.

3. Duestgrate an attomey point of contact to supervise the students within the Depaniment
ot Propery Manapgement and tre Code Eeforeemernt and Heanngs Bereau.

4. Ir coordination with the SLIC, develop a work plan {or the studerts that srovides the
maximum learning opeorucity for the student acd s satisfactory to allow the student 1o cam
academic credit toward their Juris Doetor Depree,

II. FUNDING/UOMPENSATICOIN.
MNiA

III. DLURATION.

This Agreemert will ne eftective tor one {13 vear from the Effective Date,

[V. TERMINATION.

A, Termination for Convenience, Lither pary may terninate this Agreement at any time
during the term of the Agreemert by givicg the uther party writter notice of 1its intertion to
terminate at least thirty (30) days before the imended date of termunation, Howewver, the agreemenl
shall rot be termunated 1n a4 manner that denics paicipating stidents the ability to carn courss
credit it the student is already muatricclating 1 the program,

B. Termination for Cause. bither pary may tesmnicate this Apreement immediately for
cauasce. 1f either party prevails inoa challenge 1o a termination for cause, the termication for cause
wil. ne deemed to be a termimation tor eonvenienece effective thily (30} days from the date that
the soipinal writlen aonce of wrriration {or cause withous the requirerent of notce.

¥. INDEMNITY.

A. Duty 1o Indemnify the City. To the fellest extent permatted by law, SULC will protect,
defend, indermnify, and hold harmiess the City, its agents, clected officials, and employvees
{coliectively, the “londemeificd Parties™) from and against ail claims, demands, actions, liahiitics,
lnsses (including, withoutl iimitation, ceonomic lisses), and costs, arising oul of or related to any
actual or alleged act or omissicn in the performance of this Agreement by SULC, its conployees.

Couvpurative Fndeavor Agrecmcnt Page 2ol 8
City of New Orleans and 5U1.C



Or apcnts.

B, Limit on Doty to Indemnify, Notwithstanding anything in this Agrecment to the contrary,
SULL 15 not required to indemnify the Indemmificd Partics for any loss that results from the sross
negligence or willful miscenduet of any of the Indemnified Panies, provided that SULLC did not
conteibute ko such gross negligenee or willful misconduct.

(. Independent Duty to Defend. To the extent allowed by Louisiana law, notwithstanding
anything in this Agrecment to the contrary, SULC, at its option, will immaediately defend the City
from, or reimburse the City for the City's costs inecurred in e defense of, any ¢laim that actually
or pewentaly falls within the scope of tus indermnity, even if the ¢laim is groundless, false, or
fraudulent. or if SULC s absolved of liahility,

Y. Expenses, Tothe extent allowed by Louisiana law, SULC will bear al exnenses, including
without limitation reasonable attorney fees, of the City in enforcing the terms of this article.

¥1. INSURANCE.

Dring the term of tns Apreemert, Contractor shall, a1 a?l times, maintain {4} adequate workers'
compensation and anemployment insurance coverage lor s employees in accordanes with suate
law and (b) comprehensive general dability insurance 10 amounts not less than $1,000,000 per
oecurrence and (o) cause City to be named as an additional insured withou! cost to City. City shal!
have no resporsibility for any deductible under all such policies of insurance.

VI NON-DISCRIMINATION.

A. Non-Discriminaiion in Employment, With repard to any hiring or employment decisien
made 10 comnection with the performance of this Agreement, includirg without limitation
cmplovment. upgrading. demotion. transfer. recruttment, recruitment  advertising, layoff.
termination, rates of pay or other compensation, and selection for training  including
apprenticeship, STT.C:

1. Will not diseruninate or retahiate, infact or in perception, against any cmelovee or
person sceking emplovment on the hasis of race, color, national origin, religion, creed, culture,
arcestral history, ape, gender, sexua. oricntation, gender identity, marnta: or domestic pariner
status, physical or memtal disability, or ATDS- or HIV-status;

2. Will take affirmative action to cnsure compliance with this seetiong

-

30 Wil inelude statements inoal! sobicitations or advertisements for emplovenent that alt
qualificd applicants wil! recerve corsideration for emplovmient witheut repard to race, celor,
nationa. origin, religion, creed, culture, ancestral ustory, age, gender, sexual orientation, gender
identity. marita: or domestic partner status. physical or mental disability, or AINS- or HIV-stalus;

4. Will post notices containing the provisions of this scetion 1o conspleunus places
available to emplovees and persons sccking employment,

R, Non-Discrimination. [rthe nerfonmanee of this Agrecmeaent, SUTLC

1. Wil not discriminale or retaliate, in fact or in perception, on the basis of race, color,
natioral origin, religion, creed, culture, ancestral history, age, pender, sexuai orientation, gender
identity, marital or domestic partner status, physical or mental disability, or AIDS- or HIV-status
apainst: any employee ol the City; any employee of any person working on hehalf of the Oty or
any persor seeking accommoedation, advaniages, facilities, privilepes, services, or membership in
all husiness, social, or other establishments or organizations operated hy STUT.C.

Coaperative Endeavor Apgrecment Pape 3 of 8
Uity of New QOrlewns and 51010



2.Wi comply with and atide all federal, state, and local laws relating tu non-
discriminatien, ncluding withouat limitation Titde Y11 of the Civii Riphts Act uf 1964, 25 amended,
Section ¥V ol the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the Americans with Phsabilities Act ol 1990,
O, Subcontracts, SULLC will incorporate the provisions of this Amicle by reference inzo ail
subcontracts relating to the periurmance of this Agreement,

VI NOTICES.

Lxcept for any rouling communication, any rotice, demand, communicalinn, ot reguest
requited or pereitted under this Agreement will be given 1o writing and delivered in persunur by
cerified mail, return receint requested as follows:

Tu the Ciuwe:

Chad C. Dyer, Director

Code Linforcement and Hearings Bureau
City uf New Orleans

1340 Povdras Sireet, Suite T304

New Orleans, LA 70112

&

Ciww Attormey

Cioy ol hNew Orleans

1300 Perdido Street, Seite SE03
tew Orleans, TA 70112

2. To NORA:

lettrey P lebert, Lxceutive Thrector
New Orleans Redevelopment Authority
1409 Oretha Castle Haiey Bivd,

Mew Orlears, LA 70113

3. To SULC:
Tohn K. Picrre, Inteript Chancellor
Southermn University Law Center
P. (). Box 9294
Baton Rouge, loulsiana 70813-9294

Notices are cffective when received, except any notice that is not reecived due 1o the intended
revipient’s refusal or avoldance of delivery is deemed recetved as ol the date of the first atiempted
delivery, Luach party is responsible fur notilyving the other inwriting that references this Agreement
ol any changes 1o ws address(esy set forth above.

IX. INCORPORATED DOCUNMENTS.
The folowing documents are invorporated by reference into this Agrecement:

A Wark plan as developed by SULC, NORA, and the Ciiw.

Cooperitive bndeavor Agreement Pape 4 uf 8
Cirv of Mew Orleans and SULC



3. [T any these documents conthicl, in whole or e part, with this Agreement, the ‘erms and
conditions of this Agreement will control except as provided by law

X, MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

A. Probibition Against Financial Interest in Apreement, No clected official or emplovee
of the Uity shall bave a financial interest, divect or indireet, in this Agreement, including through
any nancial interest held by the spouse, child, or varert. Any willful viclation of this provisior,
with the expressed or implied knowledpe of STIT.C, will render this Apreement voidable by the
City and shall entine the City to recover, in addition e any other rights ard remedies availabsle o
the City, all momes paid by the Ciy to SUTC pursuant o this Aprecment without regard 1o
STILCYS satstactory nerflormarce,

B. Noo-Solicitation Ntatement. SUT.C swears that i1 has nol emploved or retained any
company or person. other than a bona fide employee working solely for i1, 0 solicit or secure this
Agrecmert. SULC has not paid or agreed to pay any oerson, ather than a bona fide emeloyvee
working for it, any fee, comumnission, pereentage, @ift, or ary other consideration contingent upon
or resuting {rom this Agrcement.

(. Subcontractar Reporting. SULC will provide a list of all persons, natural or artificial,
who are retained by SULL at the time of the Agreement’s execution ard who are expecied (o
perfarm wurk as sutcontractors in connectior with SULCTs work for the ¢ity, In repard 1o any
sehenntracior propased to be retained by SULC o perform work on the Apreenent with the City,
SULC must provide rotice to the City within thirty (30) days of retaining said subcontractor. I
AULE Tails o submit the required lists and notices. the Cily may. efier thiry (307 days® written
notice to SULL, weke such action as may be necessary 1o cadse the suspension of any funher
payments untlt such the reguired lists and noetices are submitied,

[} Employec YVerilication, STULL swears that {0 it s incompliacee with Ta, RS AR2212.110,
and 15 registered and participates in a status vertfication system to verity that all employees in the
State of Loutsiana are legal eizens of the United Sates or are legal aliens; (i) it wil! continue,
during the term of this Apreement, to unilize a status veritication system 1o verify the lepal status
of al’ new empleyees in the Sate uf]mmbmna._ and (i) it will require all subcontractors to submit
e SLLC a sworn affidavit verifyine compliance with ftems (3 and (0) above,  SULC
acknowledges and agrees thar any violation of this saragraph may subjeet this Aprecment to
cancellution and may resclt in SULC being meligible for any publc contract for a pened of three
vears from the date the viclation s discovered, SULC will be liable Tor any costs incurred by the
City occasioned »y the canceliation of this Aprecment or the joss of any license or cermit to do
susiness in the State of Loulsiana resulting from a viclaton of Ta, B8 38:2212 100 50UV aprers
10 provide 1o the City g swom allidavit attesting 1o these provisions if requested by the City to do
so; the Uity may cance! the Agreerent 17 SUTLC falls o nrovide the requested affidavit.

k.. Kestrictions on Sublcascs. Non-Exclusivity for the City. The City sha'l be free to enpage
1he services of other persons for the performance of some or all of the obligations contemplated
this Apreement.

F., Acknowledgment of Exclusion of Worker's Compensalion Coverage. SULC expressly
agrees and acknowledges that it is an independent contractor as defined in la. RS, 23:1021 and
as sueh, 111 expressly apreed and understood between the parties bereta, in entering into this
services agreamert, that the City shall not be liable 10 SULC for any sencefits ar coverape as
provided by the Workmen's Compensation Law of the State of louisiana, and further, under the

Cooperative Frdesyor Apreemernt Page 5 of §
Civy of New Orteans and SULC




provisions of La. RS 23:1034, anyone cinployed by SULC shail not be considered an emplovee
of ke City for ke purpose of Workers' Compensation coverage.

G, Acknowledgment of Exclusion of Unemplovment Comgpensation Coverage. ST
hercin expressly declarcs and acknowledges that 1@ 15 an independent contractor, and as such is
being hired by the City under this Agreement for hire as noted and defined in La. RS, 23:1472(E2).
and theretore, it is expressiv declared and uncerstood between the parties hereto, 1 enteritiy into
this services ggreement, or agreement for hire, and in conrcction with uremployment
compensation only, that:

1. SUTLC 7as heen and will be free from any control or dircction by the City over the
performance of the services covered by tais contruct: and

2. Services to be periormed by SULC are owiside the normal course and scope of the
City’s usuel business; and

S

3 SULC has been independently cngaped in performing the services listed nerein prior
to tae date of this aprecment.

Consequenthy, neither SULC nor anvone emploved by SULC shall be considered an employee of
the City for the purpose of unemployient compensation coverage, which is expressty waived and
excluded.

H. ¥Waiver of Benefits, The City and SULC agree and understand that SULC, acting as an
independent apen:, skall not receive any sivk and annuoal leave, health or lite insurance, pension,
or otker benefits fram the City,

1. Jurisdiction. STILC consents and yields o the juzisdiction of the State Civil Counts of the
Parish of Orleans and formally walves any plees of junsdiction un account of the resigenee
clsewhere.

J. Governing law. Any dispute arising from or relating to this Apreement or the

performance of any obligations under this Agreement shall be resolved in accordance with the
laws of the State of Louisiana.

K. Rules of Construetion, This Apreement nhas been reviewed by all parlies and shall be
construed and interpreted according o the ordinary mezning of the words used so as to fardy
accompiish the purposes and intentions of all partics. The headings and caplions of tus Agreement
are orovided for convenience only and are not irtended 1o have effect in the construction or
rterpretation of this Agreement. The sinpular number includes the plural, where appropriate,
Neither this Agreement nor any uncerainty or ammbiguity aerein shall be construed or resoived in
favor of or agairst either party on the basis of whien party drufied the Janguape.

L. Severability. The parics intend ail provisions of this Agreemernt to be enforeed 1o the
Iullest extent permitted by law, Accordingly, iF a eount of competent jurisdiction finds any
provision o be urenforceable as written, the coun should reform the provision so that it is
eriturceable o the maximum extent permitted by law. 1f a count finds any provision is not subject
W reformation, that provision shall be fully severable and the remaining provisions of this
Agreement shall remain in full foree and effect and skall be construed and enforced as 1 such
illegal, invalid, or unenioreeabic provision was never included, and the remaining provisions of
ihis Apreernent shall remaln i full force und cifecr

M. Survival of Provisinns., All representations and warracies and all responsibilities
regarding record rewntlon, aceess, and ownership, cooperatton with (Mfice of Inspecior General

Cooperative Endeavor Agrcement Page 6 of R
Uity ¢f New Orleans and 8U1.C



investigations, and indemnification shall survive the termination of this Agreement and conlinue
in full force and effect.

N. No Third-Parry Beneficiaries. This Agrecment is entered into [or the exclusive benefit of
the City and SUTLC, and the parties expressly disclaim any intent to benefit any persun that is not
a party to this Agreement.

0. Non-Waiver. The failure of cither party to insist upon strict compliance with any provision
of this Apreement, to enforce any right, or to seck any remedy upon discovery of any defawt or
hreach of the other party shall not affeet or be deemed a waiver of any party's right to insist upon
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, to exereise any riphts, or to scek any
availuble remedy with respect o any defuult. breach, or defective performance.

P. Agreement Binding. This Agreement is nat assignahle by cither party unless authorized
by a validly executed amendment.

Q. Medifications. This Agreement shall not be madificd except by written amendment
executed by authorized representatives of the partics.

R. Yoluntary Execution, SULC bas read and fully understands the terms, covenants and
conditions set forth in this Apreement and is executing the same willingly and voluntarily of is
awr volilion,

5. Complete Agreement, This Agreement supersedes and replaces any and all prior
agreements, negotiations, and discussions between the partics with repard to the terms. ubligations,
and conditians of this Agreement.

N WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and SULC, through their duly authorized
representat.ves, execute this Apreement.

CITY OF NEW ORLEANS

BY: . I
MITCHELL L LANDRIFU, MAYOR

FORM AND LEGALITY APPFROVED:
Law Department

By:

Printcd Name: _

Looperative Bndeavor Agrecment Pager 7 ool §
City of New Orleans and SLLC

e




SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENER

BY: 3
John K. Pierme
Interim Chaneellor

Croperative Lndeavor Agreemuen

Pape 8 of &
Uity of New Orleans and SUL

L




SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY axp AGRICULTURAL & MECHANICAL COLLEGE

OFFICE OF THE VICE CHANCELLOR FOR STUDENT AFFAIRS & ENROLLMENT MANAGEMENT

Novewnber 13, 2015

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D,

Chancellor-President

Southern University System

4th Floor, 1.5, Clirk Admintstrnon Bldg.
Baron Rouge, 1A TO813

Dhear Dt Belion:

| request your approval to use $450,000,00 in prior year funds generated by the Division of Student Affairs
& Enrollment Management through the Deparrment for Residentinl Life and Housing and the Student
Health Center to fund cermin programs, inimiatives, and personnel adjustments with the Division.

Artached hereto is a miore detailed description of the specific progruns, initiatives, and personnel
adjusnments tor which these funds will be used, however, & brief general descriprion is provided below,

The Pathway 1o Prominence Plan, which was tully implemented in 2013, is a comprehensive strateay created
by and for the Division of Srdent Affairs & Enrollment Management o improve the Division's
perdormance in recruiting and remining students;, and incressing student success in the classroom, on the
campus, and in the community. These recommendarions consurure o modificanion o the plan, and are the
product of a straregic assessment perfanmed by my office with the goal of creating an organizational strucrure
thar synergizes the operation of codependent or correlative units, enyphasizes strategic planning and program
tnplementition, provides necessary funds to vital progrums that lmpact student recruitment and retention,
resolve leadership voids where necessary, and improves the quantity and quality of services provided to our
stiidents,

I approved, these funds will allow for the hiring of experienced leaders 1o oversee the opemtions within the
Utfice for Admissions & Recruitment, The Departuient tor Student Services/Residennal Lite & Housing,
The Office of the Dean of Smudents, and the Smdent Health Cenrer. Irwill also allow for us o expand health
and wellness services to current students, holster our marketing and branding efforts, and provide equirable
salary adjustments, where apPraprae, 10 biritig vmplayee salaries into conforinity with regional peers. Bdch of
these recommendaticng contained in the attached letter are contingent upon your approval of the request o
use the slorementioned prior funds, Without approval, we will be unable to implement these necessary
programs, initintives, and personnel adjustments.

1 you have any questions in regards 1o this request, please teel free o contact me.

Yoyrs in the Gald and Bl

W
ndon K. Dumas, 'h.D.
Vice Chancellor tor Student Atfates
& Enrallmenr Managenient

APPROVED: _ S &

tearn, Pl
Uhancellor-President

Post Office Box 13405 - 500 Jesse N. Stone Avenue - Baron Rouge, LA 70813 | 235771:3922 Phone 2257713959 Fax  studentaffairs@subr.edu




WOB L LASS

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

JOE COD " " p——
. . Personnel Action Form [ socmon ™
- —y
CaL | NUMBER | !
e e e e
CANMPUS NI SUBR X StLac SUARES StiNG SUSLA
EMPLOYMENT CATRGORY: SMONTH 12-MONTH X OTHER _ {sparcify
Arademic X Non-Academic Civil Service
= Temporary Parttimed %% of Fall Tima)  Hexirigied
Tenured ) Vadergraduate Student Bl A pperdotmeni
Tenured Trock Termidumte Assintanl Probatisiary
CHber (Spevify) Hetiree Heturn To Work Permanent Status
Previous Employes  Urbun Wiggtias Womsam Lefy Termination
Date Left  November 6. 2015 Salary Paid L95.000

Profile of Person Recommended
Length of Employment  Jonwury |, 2016 To  September 30, 2018
Effective Tiate  January 1, 2006

Nome  Christoplior W, Guillary SHF wavan-iTos Sea b, Hace® n
Ilu'rrillml -nrt: =
Posithon Tithe: _Divectur Department:  Instiiutional Research
Chech Ome X Esistiag Posilioh “Viem Type (See Riverse Sidej; [E:
New PFoaidion Evpiration Dete:

(Pestiban savaniy anibmiictbion bem e b proressed sed appreved e il
euniing wnd wem posiiimns Fasisn e e sds ertiard Selure prooraing FAE 6

spphinhie b

YVoears Luperience 13 Southern Unbversity Esperience u

Pegrecia)r  TypeDrisciplioe (BA Educatkon) Imatitutinn/Laocation (51 Maton Bougen Year:
Phll - Educationil Hesearch Laoubidan Stite University - Baton Hounge 2iMik
M5 -~ Mathematics Lavabsiana Svate University - Butin Bouge, LA 2ian
1S - Mathematics Vv, of Sowthwestern Lonisiana - Lafuyete, LA 1997

Carrent Empliver  Haton Houge Community ©ollege )

e ———————————————————
Personnel Action

 heck Chne - New Appodntoneni o kil Syl il - Loave ol Abwence
_ Trunfer x Heplacemeni (Hher (Specily) - -
Recommetdyd Salary  SHS00 salary Hudzvied SHS.H

Source of Funds  Tifle VI — 2200000200 0 0=24 000 amcd 20 000 1-2 0008 16 1002 - 26000 {50% eavh)

Identifs Badgel: 220306 & 201001 Livcart biomy
Farm Cuode: Page Thuen
T hange uf e
From 14
Fiomitvm " —
Sl

Salwry Adjusiment

Fimancial Asd lrll'lll;k (L. npphicuble):

Lisr potald funds correnily paid this employee by Sonree of Fands Amount
Sputhern Universit: 220290-21 11124100 S4T SIHLIM
*Ser Heverse Shile P L R A T S48,

[ Commenty: {Lse hack of farm) |

“See Heverse Shily Girwilunte School signature (il, applicable):

{uﬁfm 7 sttt

h /r}ln
‘_'___ Ca’-‘-“ _zkf—f"':ﬁ{# For =T 2.:!“"

f,.-"" [ I'Ilm'

Trat Vice President/Finance Pate
Businesa A e Campirolles
ﬂ’

h""‘ Chairman .1, Baard Dite
wil !\|||u|'1.h||.n.




Thu infurmatn i reguested sodely Tor the parpoese of determining cumplionee with Federal Civil Rights Laws and
diws not afTect emplovmwent consileratinn.

BTN Oy TS {Please check nael:

s

al e hY o=l o Ren-l ol aa

RACL [Flease check allthal apphs

YWire car ol Fiisie ¢ ariein & s ar s re 0 et o[ Fa g RN RN I PR PYTLT L R TR DU T B

hY Bliee ot et il

RN A peraon havaey amns maes e Blace i oo il Al

A perwan ot Ao Preeps Riaes ol Cenmral o S o0ih vy

voonr s Npamstoculiane oroeretns

ER TR T L

Sl P 1T D Dbk A perean Faugea oria ns i of tee ezl poezioe et bar L, o

LA-1n e Trdier

ah

Sboertrent on e Ty bl T arce s, G ewienple Ckocas lapar, berea, ks 1 ppn §

v A g

i D e sk an Nt Y e 0 e e e e i3y T e sniema meerizs ol Senh dmeticar, aod e,
e gL ard e iFoatiorn e

o P T
CEMI MR % [

FMPLOYEL REGL LAR WOHK SCHEDULE: Mo EDam S:pm
FMITOVEL DIREC 1 SIPERY ISHE Michael Sloblloficld
SUPERVINOHDEFARTMEXNT CONTACT ¥ MBER 2257713800

NUMBEN OF EMPLOYERS 81 PERVISELL (iTany &

HR USE (VLY SEATUN inis one [N ERSEEY MO NEAL

GRIDET IR AR emplupees, sudents, gruduate assistunes being emploact throueh the ase of this form are
repned e sl by cleared by the Human Hesoutges Befure any emplosmunt is afiveed g Lclore sturting 0 work.
All students are te brime witk them clearance from the Finaseial Aid office, Satement of account {Tee receipt, i nd
ooelise whedule,  AH prospeetive emplayeessfudents must bring o picrweed TN, sucia] secarity card, hieth
vertifivn te, certificate of natureligition, sesident alen card, HE-H oangd 0.1y isus, pussport. wad F-LTA-%d. The [aper
g {Ay docume nta de wot wpply 10 U, Citizens,

Ducumentation must be prsided Ture eeviews and approtyal by Humesn Resuurces befure employment is
nMered.

LLASS OV EAMPEGYMENT (VINA STATLS);

TR BREIRL S

W T A T T T R B | Y I SR TLE SR I 1™
Hoeodunl Adicn L
[ R SN TSI NCINT TRSY I8 P U Y T T 153
B T | N N P Fropne »
ceowndimlk et Fmp [ osadoni ot s I
NV -1 Wise "5 Orar Appnesal- Meacrcal Wk s e ewe s (|

. . A |

Do Not Write Below This Area
For Human Resgurce and Budgetary Control Use Only!

MAF APPROYAL PROCESS CHECKT AT Pl huve ol carbrmat o auGisied boeisee

e Pasition Macunes Aalaecsation Fommoapplicen oo cow e rplontngeg posit o

Fomtion Waeanes Ammanoemiend el acsorl sed velone e, wesig A ape aane

Aprpticare e Lmalesmem Foe Adm nLac ? vel Bt oo | sepce 4 sphcatior mar clas-il: 2zl woankaees-.

Actheris to Kelease to ool !

Panmplas e sabincwed oo Beseanos s wie s el Beeagreuns ek T

Aupuercsomh Lriring Macepmonnd Cacek Foor oozt hy o ee serifez and wened by eepgr e
Drarmptinns Suraes Foem aiaed s cneesee aed Budeer heoe

fropossl Bmaloy oo Appoinimers

Aroposgl Bavalosce Clerapes

dcatriceds Job Appoiatneo 0% Rale A Lo af Justilicatney  or o e, e, Cappeicakie:




Christopher Willie Guillory
42506 Bart Sweet Gonzales LA 70737 (223) 675-2738
cwgmath] 975 @ gmail com

Emplovment History

[Nirector of Institutional Rescarch, 2012 w present

Haton Rouge Community College

Responsibilities: Druties include being responsible for collecting, managing, and analyzing large
quantities of tata to support deeision making, to meet internal and extemal requests, and to meet
regulatory, state, federal, and accreditation reporting, and publie relations needs, This individual
Coordinates the collection, analysis, and interpretation of selected institutional data, and provides
systems for the dissermimation of nformation.

Trirector of Data Analysis, 2008 to 2012

East Baton Rouge Pansh School System

Responsihilities: Duties included overseeing and coordinating dara analysis and data mining
activitics, undertaking provision of qualiry, timely, and reliable daw to the East Baton Rouge
Parish School System for more informed decision-making. Ensured data integrity at all levels,
including data for internal and extemal uses, and provided leadership in improving availabiiity,
access, and usage of student level data.

Acssistant Professor, 2008
Naton Rouge Community College
Courses: Iniroduction to Statjstics, College Algebra, and Trigonometry

Instructor, 2004 — 2008
Baton Rouge Community College
Courses: Inuoduction to Statistics, College Algcbra, and Trigonometry

Graduate Assistant, 2000 — 2003
Louisiana Staw University
Courses: Statistical Inference [ Lab, Statistical Techmques 1 Tab

Education

PhD, Educational Research, Louisiana State Universiry, 2008

Conecenmation: Multilevel Models and Survival Analysis

Trisseriation: A Multijevel Diserete-Time Hazard Model of Retention in Higher Education

MApStat, Applied Statistics, Louisiana State Lniversity, 2003
Concentration: Survival Analysis

M.S., Mathematics, [ouisiana State University, 2000
Coneeniration: Tinancial Mathematics

B 5., Mathematics, University of Southwestern Lowsiana, Lafayene, TA, 1997




Major: Mathematies, Minor: Sociology

Pridessional Qualifications
Experience with logistic regression, survival analvsis, hierarchical linear modeling, and other siatistical
techniques

Tuaught courses 1n Statistics, College Algebra, Trgonamerry, and Dasic Alpebra
Analyse large dala 5ets 10 assist adminisirators and faculty members to interpret and understand analyze
daia results

Performed cvaluations of several East Baton Roupe Parish School System programs 1o determine the
programs’ effeet on parheipating students

Exaperience in using SAS, SPS5, SPLUS, SLIDA, ATLASH, and LATEX seltwarc

Prescatations;

Cuillory, Christopher (2006). Math Anxiety or Homewaork, Paper presented at the Mid-South
Educational Rescarch Association Conference

{tillory, Christopher (2007}, Multilevel Discrete-Time Hazard Model. Selected o presend at the
Mid-South Educational Research Association Caonference

(tuillery, Christopher (2008}, Multileve! Discrete-Time Harard Model. Paper presented at the
Southwest Fducational Rescarch Association Conference.

Cullory, Chostopher (2008), Multilevel Discrete-Time Harard Model. Paper presented at the
American Hducational Research Association Conference.

{ruillory, Christopher (2010), Development and Implementation of a Formative Assessment
Program: Lessons and Results from the Fast Baton Rouge Pansh School System. Paper
presented at the Council of the Great City Schools Annual Conference.

{(zrants and Fellowships
National [Data Institute Fellow
{{uel D. Perkins Fellowship
IGERT Fellowship

Professional Membersbips
Association for Institgtional Research
American Statistical Association




Southern Association for Institulions]l Rexearch
Louisiana Asspciation for Institutional Research

Refcrences
Available on request



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY axp AGRICULTURAL & MECHANICAL COLLEGE

OFFICE OF THE VICE CHANCELLOR FOR STUDENT AFFAIRS & ENROLLMENT MANAGEMENT

November L1, 2015

Ray . Belton, Ph.I).

President - Chancellor

Southern University System

4" Floor, |. S, Administration Bldge.
Baron Rouge, Louisiana 70813

I deir | . Hl.'lt‘nu:

Asa resule of the recent o [ wil of Ihr rovised nr}_!;lht:nll-.m'.ﬂ structure of the Division of Student Aftairs
& Enrollment Management coupled with the need to fill a critical vacancy in the leadership of the
."-1T1Ii11‘11-1! }-[L‘H.[Th l‘-l"nt\'[. E 1"1"1‘1““ Ihi": Il'r'l."r A5 N f;."rt"'.li 'ﬂ.‘l;u[‘.‘;r oy wiive l!li.' .‘\l'.'irl.'ll rt‘lll”r("“]l"nT ‘I_TT t!'l.l.'
Director of the Srudent Health Center and appoint Dr. Gireta M. Wilkes o the position, effective
immediarely.

Dr. Wilkes hins a long, established career of demonstrared leadership, organization, and medical
astuteness. She has served as the Medical Director of the Student Health Center for several vears,  She
is # licensed professional with an indepth, working understanding of the inner workings of the Center
and its staff dynamics. She possesses the vision, talent, professional training, collegial esteem, and
inseirurional knowledge essential for hier to be an effective leader,

Ly, Wilkes has an accomplished medical career that spans more twenty years. In 1995, she carned her
license to practice medicine in the State of Louisinna while serving her country in active duty status in
the LLS, Army Medical Corps - i corps in which she served for six years hefore her honomble discharge
at the mank of Major in 1997, [n addition ro maintining a private practice, she has served as Chief of
Statt and Medical Stalf Representative to the Boand of Directors at Lane Regional Medical Center, staff
phiysician with the Capitol Ciry Family Health Center and Primary Care Ciroup.

In discussing her inrerest in the aforementioned position, Dr. Wilkes displayed an impressive and
integral knowledge of the Student Health Center's operations, and described o number of subsmntive
cha nges she would like to make to improve the l.h.‘ll-\'l."r‘!.' of medical services to our students and make the
operation more efficient. 1 walked away with o satistying confidence that she is well equipped o lead
the Student Health Center for the foreseeable future.

For additional informarion regarding the academic and professional qualificarions of Dr. Wilkes, | have
herero attached her TCSLImE.

I humbly ask for your favorable approval of this request. 1f | can provide you with any additional
information, please feel free o contact me.

"ﬁ'%;- ine the Gold and Blue

Brandon K. Dumas, Ph.D,
Vice Chancellor for Srudent Affairs
& Enrollimenr Management

o 2
2 5
- L

e '-;--" 3

Y

QM' ¥ '.l.i'ﬁn{}h.[';.

President-Chancellor

'il.lll'llnh.'-.‘l.l' f._#

Post Office Box 13405 - 300 Jesse N. Stone Avenue - Baton Rouge, LA 70813 1 2257713922 Phone 2257713959 Fax | studentaffairs@subr.edu




STUDENT AFFAIRS

— & Enroliment Management

Greta Wilkes, M.D.
Director of Student Health Center




|' JOB CLASS

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

| O CODE !im !I'IMI J"cuﬂl F“"ﬂ'll | POSITION T | 1 ‘
CCALID NUMBER fond | (s
e e ——————
CAMPMUS: SUS SUBR _I_ SULALC SUAREC SUND SUSLA
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: GMONTH 12-MONTH I OTHER i Specily )
Academic L Non-Academic Civil Service
Tempurnry Part-time | % af Full Time) Restricted
~ Temured Undergraduate Student Aok Appaintment
) Tenured Track Grodunie Assistani Probatinnary
~ inther (Specilly) Retiree Return To Work _ Permancat Statos
Previous Employee  Shirley F. Wode Reason Left Resigned
Date Left  Septomber 7, 7015 T Salary Paid _$104,500.00

Profile of Person 0 nde

Length of Ensployment Decamber 1, 2015 To July 31, 2016
Effective Date  Movember 1. 2015

Greta M. Wilkes, M.D.

Mame S 500018910 Sex F Race* B
i o il naiby i
Position Title:  Direetor Department:  Student Health Centor
Check (e % Existing Position *Visa Type i5ee Heverse Side): E:D
MNew Position Expiration Date:
Position vacency sutharition frm omst be processed and appeoved e 0
endutiing miwil new prsitbsns. Pesbibin st e sdbvertised bifors processing FAK.
appisahir ¢
¥ ears Expericnce 0+ Southern University Experience L
Degreeisi:  Typeiscipline (BA-Education: InstitutionTocation (S1-Boion Roupek Yenr:
BLS. - Chamistry Xavier University — New Orleans, LA 1987
Mm.0. Meharry Medical College = Nashville, TN 1991

Current Employer  Southern Uinivarsity ond A5M College — Student Heclth Centes
e —— e —

Persannel Action
Check (e X New Appaointowent Contimumtion Sabhatical Leave of Absence
_ Tramsfer X Weplacement Oiher (Specify)
Recommended Salary $110,000.00 Salary Nudgeted $110,000.00
Sonrce of Funds Student Health Canter
Identify Budget:  2156080-27401 Locution
Foirm Cude: Page Tt ¥
Change of:
Erom 1
Position Medical Diractar Director of Student Hoalth Conter
Status
Salary Adjustment $75,000.00 £110,000.00
Financial Aid wm—;hlﬂ:
List totnl Fopds currently paid this employes by Source of Funds A it
Seuthern University: ‘21 6060-27401-61002-2%000 $110,000.00
*Saew Reverse Side
I] Comments: | Lse bick of form) 1
*See Reverse Side Grnduate School signature (i, applicalibe
W Horh 15 : e it

Prate Dean/Unii Iw/ £ [hatr
| - G {’1 .-'II
e f-l" “ A Hret &
Viee ( MIT Chancelldr “Tiate
mmn ;f rv.nil P Date Vice President! Finance Business AfMairs Datr
2 a'f;"!'.?‘jf}’

Frosidlnn I S 7 Daite Chasirssan/S.\L. Board of Supervhwors Dhate




This information is reguested solety fur the purpose of determining cumplianee with Federal Civil Rights Laws
wnid dues net allect employneal considecation,

ETHNIC OROGIN (Please check vne )

Himpusae ar Lt Man-Hispanic e bon- Latine

RACE (Please check all that sppix )
Wehite, nat ol Hispanis orsgn. A o 1 Fasig oepes cnaey el bl pephe w bac e Sk e, ke Mol B
I Black —olad Hispans Orpm. & peesan havng oregina nany of the Black rocia! grosps ol Afric
Hispanie A& person of cawan, Pueres R, Cundr, Cental e Bueth Americas, or otk Spanish collore eeoen g,
Corepriltoss al e

Avran or Pagdie Iabaindor, A peson haviag ugigies o amy ob she croging poepes ul the Ear Busst, Sawtheost Asia, The Indos
Nomcerimeed, unthe Bae i Islamds, Thon anei et s, wor suaimphe. Uhiva, Zoprat. Kirein. L Il Islar s, arel Sasea,

American Indioe o Alaskan Manve, & peeace Baeiag cegis m ans at ke ignd peaphes el Seith Aericaen, amd who
e dehieeal el i thoeagh nisal atflaee e arveeean Sy Peeagrilig
COMMFENTS:

D-. Wikes is e ng niced as Lircclar of the Student Heoltn Center,

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDLLL: } _ o

FMPLOYEE NIRECT 51 PERYIS(OR: Erandan K. Dumas, PhD. _ .
SUPERYISORMEFPARTHENT CONTAUT NUNMBER  222.071.3922 )

AIMEBER OF EYPLOYEES SLPERVISEL. il any) 7 o
HEH L'SE DNLY: STATLIA fviree wnel TREMFT NOIN-EXEMPT

GLIDELINES: Al emphoyees, students, yraduste wssistanis being employed through the wse of this form are o repart ta und
b vleared by the Human Hesouroes Lefare uny employment is nMeced and before starting In waork, All slpdeasts are to bring
with them cirarance from the Financia] Aid office, Statement of Aceaunt Ifer ceveipti. and o clis schedule, All prospective
employeesfsiudents must iniog 8 pictnred 10 sacial security card, birth cortificate, cerlificnte uf naturalizalion, recdent alicn
curd. H1-10 and 1-1 visas, passport, und F-1T-94. The latler six 161 documents du nat apply e LS, Citizens.

Letore employment is

ocumentstion must be provided Tor veview and upprovat by Humasn Hesourges
ulfered,

CLASS OF EMPLOYMEMNT (V%A STATLE):

IY¥Fr LI EXPLRES
Uhned Seates CuiecndlersNeire ol Nituralieato: L%

Romident Aben R

H | Wisa  Dstingnshed Merst & AlGiy: H

1o W mchanee Voo Frogonng 11

FoIowsa U Sulznt B FIU Studental 5.4 1

OFT ok | ¥ ise-INS Priar Appriseal “Proctical Wark Faperence”) Fl

#
Do Not Write Below This Area
¥or Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROYAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (¥ust heve Ihe iatormation untlined b i b

Apareved Pustion Vacuncy Autnorizition Ferm dapplible Foonss nd replacencrt pusionsl

Posilion ¥acarey Anrounsement ipositive advinised befure processing pAE, if applicakle)

Apphcatan for mapiogment Farn AdwinTaeUnel Poses Sl Sersnas Apphealee Fir o livsifued conplosess
Aqbarity to Releise (sipned hy empluverd eobimniied w Hurss Resieiioes with Cricinal B acsprouw € kesh e
Supcresery Crmual/Backprioand Chuck Form wurphoeal sy s oo v ciad s sigred by soapervisas
Excruptions Survey Foamnm isigned hy emplayes and Fulyret *ead

Propased Empioyee A ppointmer:

Pronesed Cruployee Clearune

Heostricizle Fon Anprintment/C5 Rule &.5g Letler of Tusttheation {fon classafied, if applicable:

dpen SN



JOB TITLE;

fgr‘;;'ﬂ’(z ‘// ?’%m‘ ) [/ (ﬂ

PHYSICIAN

6110 MAIM STREET SUITE A

ZACHARY, LA 70791
Telephone

225 6582034

Focsimile

223 6589788

Brofile

In 1983, T graduated as the first Afvican American Valedictorian of the local
Zachary High School. Now as a family practice physician, | have returned
home 1o the community that mentored and supported my career. Southern
University has always been an integral part of the community: 1 look forward 1o
the opportunity to continue in the care of students as well as the establishment
of the Stucent Health Center as a standard of excelleney,

i .
LA LI ence

Medical Staff Representativie to The Board OF Directors, Lane Regional
Medical Center, Zachary, La 2012-2013

Chief OF Staff, Lane Regional Medical Center, Zachary, La, 2011-2012
Physician, Healing Place Medical Center, Zachary La, 2009-current

Healing Place Medical Center is o solo privite practice providing primary care in hoth
inpatient and outpatient settings,

Physician, Primary Care Group, Zachary, La 2000-2009
Primary Care Group s o group practice under the management of First Care Physicians, #
Grenernl Health Syswems subsidiary,

Physician, Medical Director, Capitol City Family Health Center, Baton Rouge,
La, 19897-2000

Caphol Caty Family Health Center is a federally qualified healith center providing medical
care i an underserved commmnity;



Physcian, Bayne Jones Army Community Hospdoal, Fure Polk, La, (990021047
Unined Brates Army Medicad Oz €fFieer, Honncahle T¥Hselurge an the rank of Aajor

Active Medical Stafl’ Affiliatinns with Tane Regional Huspieal. Baon Rouer
General Medical Uenter, Chur Lady af the Take Regienal Medival Cemer

F .
L :-{f;fr.‘rffﬂ}ﬂ

Havier Umversity, New Ovdeans, Ta, 105, Chemismy Pre-Medivine 1987
Mobarry Medival College, Nashwille T, Doctorate OF Medicine 199

Martn Army Communioy Hospital, Farily Medicine Resideney
Program, Fi.Benning (ia [931-1491

;Uff;ﬁ.;z vl

Furnished upon request



SOUTHER&

UHIFEHEIT‘I’

Ao subtturs &'q“ﬂl"mnn LR T

Office of the Executive Vice President Voice: (225) 771-4085
far Academic Affairs and Provost FAX (225) 771-2068

P.O. Box 9374

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

November 11, 2015

Dr. M. Christopher Brown II
Executive Vice President and Provost
Southern University

Baton Rouge. LA 70813

Dear Dr. Brown:

Please find enclosed a Personnel Action Form (PAF) for Dr. Pui-Man Lam, Professor,
Department of Physics, College of Sciences and Agriculture, to be included in the
SUBOS November 2015 Board Packet. Dr. Lam has requested a sabbatical leave of
absence for Spring 2016 semester. 01/06/2016-05/31/2016.

As an SUBR . theoretical physicist whose research focuses on DNA studies,
specifically physics of epitaxial thin film growth and unzipping of DNA. Dr. Pui-Man
Lam is one who integrates research and classroom instruction.

During sabbatical leave, he proposes to perform currently relevant statistical
calculations on DNA, as well as other single-molecule biopolymers, under an external
force. Moreover, he will be collaborating with other theoreticians at Emory University.

Please advise if further information 1s needed.

Verlanis A. Peoples, Ph.D.
Interim Vice Provost for Academic Affairs

Enclosures

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 -0400 ([225]771-2011

A People's lmsuitution Serving The State, The Nation, and the World "



REQUEST FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE FORM
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

CamiUs: SUS 0 SUBR x = SULAC . SUAREC SUND _ SUSLA

Nume of Employee:  Pui-Man |om S8N: 252.73-6453

Address: 12610 Wyndy Drive. Baton Rouge, Lowisiang 70816 B Phone: 225-T71-5737

Title Professor Highest Degree: PhD.

Birth Dute: _08/19/1948 = REC
Elve
D

NO, OF CONSECUTIVE FISCAL YEARS ACTIVE SERVICE AT THIS INSTITUTION: 23 .
0
v et pg whygme

Purpose ol leave Requested (click one: Slrve
i Professional or Cultural Improvement (Must have prior approval trom Chancellor) X

b, Restand Recuperation (Statement from two (2) physictans® must be attached )

¢, Independent Study or Research Suitemen =

d.  Militmry

e.  Maternity (Statement from ope (1) physician® must be attuched)
*“must be attending physician

EFFECTIVE DATE OF LEAVE: 0110/ 2016 ANTICIPATED RETURN DATE:

TYPE OF LEAVE REQUESTED (check one): Brites M

. with pay X HUMAN RESOURCES

b, without pay —_— gcT 2: 2015
LENGTH OF LEAVE REQUESTED: (No, of weeks. nol 1o exceed 36 weeks) 20

MANNER IN WHICH THIS LEAVE, IF GRANTED, WILL BE SPENT: Research in Statistical Physics

L e T e e L e R ]

DO YOLWISH TO RETAIN FRINGE BENEFUTST (if ves, total contribution of preminm must be paid to
Human Resources/Comptroller’s Office in Advance)

Teacher Retirement Yes x No .
State Retirement Yes No
Group lnsurance Yes «x No
Elected Supplemental Benefits Yeo N

| hereby agree w comply with the provisions of the Southern | mcruh Board of § NLJ:'LT'\ isors”
policy on leaves of absence. ‘L
11620016 Mg ﬁ'\l,z.x
DATE HE-‘.”\AII RE OF APPLICANT
Ty T T MMM M MM M " "M MMM M M M " ™M™ ™M™
PRIOR LEAVE RECORD FROM THIS INSTITUTTION:
Date of Last Leave -
Purpose of Last Leave,
TYPE OF LAST LEAVE:
With pay Amount
Without Pay
Length of lnst leave

e L e L L T e e L e T

_T;L A El = i VT

« af ‘11s|iz1jmn Signature of

" Compus Chaneellor

'l!'!l'l'll'l'lll- y-o&iritt;-iotk--.Jnrriooin-t
1_'_,1)‘.4-'L'..\__;f“ .'{}HL. —

nlh;_..flh.ln f‘///?/‘wlbnn[jﬂﬁrgfkiuﬂ Academic Officer

T
____ff__ e,
Sig un:lii "'hw.m President

—

_Z/‘ g / 174 {2‘;_ ..__.._ai,i-.;;,-'i 4 3

DATE DATE

FARAFINETERINTARE NI E R AR B RN R R AR AR AR AR R R R R AR RN RR RN SRR AN R AR RN R PR RO A R AN

Signature of Approprinte Committee Chalrpersan Signature of Chairman of the Board

[ate ﬁ;l[r.'




[ JOI CLASS

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
108 CODE P ol Aotlin T ey \

‘CALID | NUMBER

CAMPUS:  SUS SUBR X SULAC SUAREC SUND SUSLA
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: EMONTH X I-MONTH OTHER {Speeify)
X Academic Non-Academic Civil Serview
Femparary Part-time { % of Full Time) Hestricted
X Tenured Undergraduate Student _doby Appaintment
Tenured Track Graduate Assistant Probationary
_ Dher (Specify) Retiree Heturn To Work e Fermancnt Status
Previous Employee NA Reason Lef MA
Date Lelt NiA Salary Paid MA
Profile of Person Recommended
Lengih of Employment 62016 Tn $/132016
Effective Date | 2016
Numy Fui=Man Lam S8 S0001 5404 Sox Male Roce* _Asim
haar 4 digei b sy
Posithon Title: Professo Department: Physicd
Check Oie X Existing Position “Visa Type (See ReverseSider:  [U | |5 |
New Positien Evpiration [afe:

(Pusition vaenney anibirization oo musl e procosel and approved s ]
ruinbing amid wew pisitions. Poslibis musi be silvertised helore processing PAK, i

lprﬂhhlt.!
Yenrs Expericoce 7 Southern University Experience 2}
Degrecisi:  Type/Discipline (BA-Educotion Institutlon/Location (S1-Haton Rouge): Year:
PhD-Physicd P00, Washington University, St Louis, MO September 1977
RS B.5. San Dicgo Swte University, San Diego, CA dune 1972
Current Employer Southern Liniveruity, Baton Rouge
Personnel Acti
Cheek One New Appaintment Continuation Sahbatical Leave of Absence
Trunsfor Replacement X her (Specify) Sabbatical Leave — Spring 2016
Recommendid Sulary £34,875 Salary Budgeted £34 875
Source of Funds Stre Funds
Tdeitify Budge: 21 1M 1224792 1000 Luocation Plyvaigs
Form Code: Page I ligm N I
Change ol
From Io
Pasitinn
Status

Salary Adjustment

Finmneial Ald signature (I, applicable):

List total fuads corrently pald this emplovee by Suuree of Funils Amuunl
Southern University: [ Phyaica (21 1001-22479-210040) $6%,749
*See Reverse Side

I Comments: {Use back of form) ]

*See Reverse Side Ceradunie Sehonl signature {if, applicablei:

r1f25/2015
e , Date
Al /25

Date

Viee President/Finunce hate
Husiiess AMalr Comptroller

Pr:ﬂﬁé? # Daie ChairmanS.L. Board Date
i of Supervivors



This informatino is reguested solely for the purpese of delermining complisnee with Federal Civil Rights Laws
and dnes ont affeet employment comsideration,

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check nee):
Hisnanic or @ .atiro X Man- Hispame ar San-Latine
RACFE {Please cheek all that apply):
Yohote, nct ol Hispanic orging A peon seseg weped cey 20k 2002 ol peopls alSurne, Secik Alaen v the W le B
Black. notaf Hsparic g, A person Baving rrigans soany af the Black zacis growgs ol Adnea.
Flispanic A person of Mysjuen, Puena Bican, Cukan, Cenlral o Soclh Ames can, or cikes Spamsh cuiare or asp,ng,
repacdless of -uce
Avian or Pac i lslarder, A porson havire erigons ivaey of the ozpingl pecpaes of Be Far Bael, Southeast Asia, ke o disn
X Ssbeorlivenl o the Pesifg Isieads. Thes arec inceades. oo oxwmpa, Cuina, Jepan, Korey, @iz Phoppone slands, and saroe
Aarerizan Indizn s Alasha: Nalivg, A person haeivg; ariging i any ol B onignal peooies al Sank A, and weo
Fiaisiiey caloasdemilizator through trisal alfuiation of aormusify recasniton
X
COMMENTS:
s BAF o5 for the aoproved sashatica! vave fo: T3 Puc-Man Lar, Prefese: of Physics, foe the 366 speng semzater. He nas bree:
aparoweg forsahbatical or 169% pay and benelits.

FMELOYEL REGLUL AR WORK SCHEDULE: 00 AM 0D P, MTWRT
LMPLOYEL DTRECT SUPERYISOIH: . 1or_Terrence Rewse, Interine Chazs ol Poysics
SUPERYISORDEPARTMENT CONTADT NUNBER: M wui0 o

NUMBER OF FMPLOYEES SUPERYISER, (if any): ) -

HE USE GONLY; STATUS feirele onue - FXENDT W= KEMDT

CUIDELINES: All employces, students, graduate assistants being employed throogh the use of this form
are ta report to und be ceared by the Human Resourcees befare any employment is offered and belore
starting 1o work, All students are tn bring with them clearence Tram the Financial Aid office, Stalemenl
of Account {Tee receipt), and a class scheduoie. Al prospective employeesfstudents must bring @ pivtured
113, social security card, birth certificute, certificate of aaturulization. resident aticn card, H1-B and J-1
vigas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter vix (6) documents do not apply to 1.5, Citizeos.

roval by Human Resvurces helore emplovment is

Dorumentating musl be provided Toe review and a
allered.

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (V1S4 STATLIN):

IYPEL CODE LXPLRES
Lo ced Srames C0zensCetiscase ol Naturaizenion L&

Resident Alien RA

Fl-% %isa [Distinuaissed Mot & Akilind 11

i1 Wisa {Dachange ¥oaizr foprem) 11

Fo: Wisa dswdem Emp. FT Sudentat .17 Fi

AT 1] Visa-INS Prios Approval-Pracvtcal Wok Ghperiznce” 10

e
Do Not Write Below This Area
For Human Resgurce and Budgetary Conirol Use Only!

PAF APPROY AL PROCESS CHFCKLINT (Must have the infurmation, eutlined below):
Appreved Position Vacanoy Autkorication Farm (applicalle for nwa wec replacement gosiuons)
 Pasition Vacancy Announcement {pasitizn ndvertised Lefore pricewing PAF, f applicahle)
Applicaton for Empioyrem Farm azmonFas L] 2usitionsi e Serace Applization [ lasifed eropaoyees)

L Authority to Release (sijgred by empluyech isusmened 1o Campus Palice will, Crirmmal RBazepround Chees fura)
Supervisory CrminaliHackground Check §umn cenpleted sy oirpleyes? weifed a1d s ;e or supers sor)
Exematicas Survey Fonm (sigaed by ermalives and Sudges head}

Propased I'imalovas Appoiciimen:
_ Preposed Employee Clearance
Restroted: Jub AppaimtoeniC s Rule /.3 Lecter ol Jusiilisation (for elassdded, iFapalivable;



o || soUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
JOB CODE L Personnel Action Form | posirion

CAL 1D = | NUMBER A [F ‘flé‘ﬂé'

#

CAMPLUS: SUS S5UBR X SULAC SUAREC SN SUSLA
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: LMONTH 12MONTH _ OTHER X (Specify)  FALL 2015
X Academic _ Nom-Acadenile Civil Service
lempurars Pari-time | % of Full Thme) Restricied
X Tennred Unidergraduate Student Job Appuﬂmng_m '
Teoured Trock Giraduaie Assisiuni Frobationary = = —
Other (Speeify) = Retiree Heturn To Wark ~ Permavent Stifis
=3 -y
Previows Emplovee MICHEAL SMYSER Wewson Left SICK LEAVE

Date Left _AUGUST 12, 2008 Salury Palll  $65822.00 =

Profile of Person Recommended = =
Length of Employment ALGLST 27, 2015 To DECEMBRER 31, 2015 S L.
Effective Date _AUGUST 27,2015 —= - e
Name MICHEAL SMYSER S5 S00015484 Sex i Race®  while
ilmai d digiiw vimly
Position Title:  Associate Professor Department:  [Depr. of Acet., Fine., & Econ.
Check X Existing Position *Vium Type i5ee  Heverse
Do Side):
New Position Expiration Dae:
{Pusating sacnmey suthitasiinn fom mansl b prowesn] aod spgroel o il
enlsting noud mew posiiss, Posdiion wst be sdvarised befars procesdng PAk, i1
Epplicalsle.
Years Evperience 35 Soulbern Unbversity Experience 13
Degree(s):  Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Locarion {51)- Haton Rougcel: Year:
PHD FINANCE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 199y
M5 FINANCE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 1987
BEA FINANCE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 198G
Current Emplover  SLUBR
e
Personnel Action
Check (O New Appointmient Continuntion Sabbutical X Leave of Alsence
Transler Replacemomt  (hther [Specify)
Hecommended Salary  S3IS04160 Salary Bodgered S50 1.60
Source of Funds  GENERAL FLUNDS
Identily Budger:  211001-22206-2 1000 Location
Form Code: Page lem #
Change ol
From In
Position
Stafis
Salary Adjustment
Finnneinl .-\H.d_lﬂl'lltm {If, applicahle):
st tutnl fonds currently pouid this employes by Source of Funils Amount
Southern University: 21100 1-22204-2 1000 $71,883.20
“Mee Reverse Side
| Comments: {Use baek of form) |
*See Reverse Side Gruduate School siguaiure (if, applicable):
e ".f-'&' T it i ) J..'?r:_ LN .:5; g z’%ﬁfﬁ-ﬁm =
7 alr

Deapft nit HEAd
e

' ¥ P— '
@im Jé"a‘hﬂﬁf
reetor/ Personng

’ Bosiness Affairs/Comptroller
A

President & ; Dhaie Cliairmans.1, Board are
ol Supervisors




This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws and
does noi affect employment consideriation.

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please chieck one):

- Hispame o Latimn X Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino
RACE (Please check all that spply )
X Wte, nol of |i|5p.,1|1n: O A persan having omgits ininy ol (i asvigamial peopbie of Furope, Soeth Afrsc, or thie Mididle Ean

liack ool Phspame Oogmg A person having onigins in any of the Black macil groups of Alics

|[|_n,}1;||'||;_ A person of Mexican Puerio Reean, Cuban, Central or South American. or ofber Spanish culture or origins

regaidless of face

Asu or Pocific Islander. A person having arigins i any of the onginl peoples of the Far Bast, Southeast Asla. the
Indinn Sithcontinent, o the Pacific lalunds. This area incloden, for example, China. Japan, Kivei, the Philippine Islands

wind Suiina

American Indian or Aloskan Native. A person baving origins i sy of the origing) peoples of North American, and whe
st culiseral et Beticn through ribal gililabon or comummnily recoginituon.
#
COMMENTS: This sick leave / leave of absence EPAF ks effective for 08272005 to 123 12005, Per email from Ms.
Abbey Melavy ......Dr. Michael Smyser hws been approved for FMLA leave for treatiment and recuperation for lis
illess. Bluman Resources has the documentation from Dr. Smyser's doctor. A copy of the EPAF is attached, which
fonad 1o be restarted 1o add the SU Baard to the list of approvers.

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Muon - Fri B . _—
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: DR GHEBREYESUS/IEAN ANDREWS 771-56411

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (ifany) 0 - N
HR USE ONLY: STATLIS {cirele onel: EXEMPT NOMN-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employvees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form
are to report to and be elearcd by the Human Resources hefore any employment is offered and hefore
starting to work. All students are to bring with them elearance from the Financial Add office, Statement
of Aecount (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring & pictured
1D, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) documents dp not apply to LLS, Citizens,

Resonrces belore

TYPE ﬁ CODE  BUDGET OfAREES
Unlted States Citzen/Certificate of Naturali \
Hesident Alwen

Fh1 Vika (Distiiguishod Merst & Ability)

1-1 Visa (Tixchange Visior Program)

F-1 Visa (Student Emp, FT Student a1 5.15) < Fl
OPFT (E-] Visa-INS Prior Approval-Practical Work Exper IJ.‘I1IEI.:"E

o

. U E

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STA ﬁ]: s ’
- § § SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

oL

e S ocT 1420
‘ &
WL

s

0CT 14
VICE CHane

Do Not Write Below This Area

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below):

Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacesent positions)
Position Vacancy Annvuncement (position sdvertised before processing PAF, ifapplicable)

.n\pp[u;uunu i i-ﬂmluymn‘;l Fowrmm Adimiind/Fac/Uncl Positions{Civil Service .ﬁ.;q“llmﬂ.liull for elassified emnployvees)

Authority 10 Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Campus Police with Craminal Background Check form]
Supervisory Criminal/Boackground Check Form (campleted by employes/ verified and signed by supervisor)
Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employes and budget head)

Proposed Employee Appomtment

Proposed Employee Cleaninee

Restricted’ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5¢ Letter of Justification { for classified. if applicable)

s IR IRIT®




Policy Mo, suUs112

Revision No. 1
Date of Revision 1110415
Last Review Date 11/10/15
Page 1of2

POLICY

Subject: Employee Eligibility Requirements for the Affordable Care Act (ACA)

1.0 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

The purpose of this policy is to outline employee eligibility for health insurance under the State
Emplovee Health Plan pursuant to the provisions of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care
Act (ACA). This policy applies to all employees who are not benefits-eligible and whose
appointments do not qualify them to participate in the State Employee health plan.

2.0  RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX

Procedure Responsibility

2. Procedure Responsibility

2.1.1 The Associate Vice President of Human Resources is responsible for the
development and maintenance of this Policy.

I

1.2 The Associate Vice President of Human Resources or the Campus HR
Director serves as the Human Resources Officer.

2.1.3 Employees are responsible for following the policy statements set forth in
this policy.

Employer Mandate

I'he university must offer health insurance coverage at the time of hire to any employee

reasonably expected 1o work an average of at least 30 hours per week annually.

The Office of Human Resources shall be responsible for the enforcement of this administrative

procedure to ensure Southern University's compliance with the ACA.

Establish measurement periods to track the hours worked for all employees not offered health

care, This includes temporary adjunct faculty and part time staff, variable hour employees,

seasonal/special hire and re-employed retirees,

Provide marketplace notices to existing and new employees




Policy No. SUSI12

Revision No. 1
Date of Revision 11/10/15
Last Review Date 11/10/15
Page 2o0f2

Ensure that the benefit coverage for all existing benefit-eligible employees meet the ACA
requirements of affordable coverage and benefit value.

Establish a standard measurement period of 12-months 1o measure the employees' average
weekly work hours and determine who is eligible for benefits.

Offer healthcare insurance benefits to any and all eligible employees who average 30 work hours
or more per week during the standard measurement period.

Meonitor the initiation of initial stability period for newly benefit-eligible employees.
Establish a calculation of hours for part-time faculty
Provide information about breaks in service.

Create and implement tools to help departments and employees manage average weekly hours
worked.

Provide gidance to departments and employees as needed.
Supervisor Responsibilities

It is important for departments to monitor any and all variable hour employees to ensure ACA
compliance. If employees average 30 work hours or more per week in a measurement period,
Southern University has to offer healthcare insurance to the newly eligible employees.

To ensure compliance, supervisors must:
Monitor all non-benefited employee average work hours per week over a measurement period.

Work with departments across colleges/campuses to coordinate work schedules for variable hour
employees if they hold two or more positions.

Ensure that variable hour employees are compensated for every hour they work (part time faculty
are paid based on the number of credit hours taught).

Understand the calculation of hours for part-time faculty.
Understand the 'break in service' rules for part-time employees.
Employee Responsibilities

Variable hour employees can monitor their average weekly hours in order to continue to
maintain their variable hour status.

To ensure compliance, employees must:
Communicate with supervisors about all employment at Southern University.
Report all hours worked.

Read the marketplace notices.

(B ]



Policy Na. suUs12

Revision No. |
Date of Revision 11/1018
Last Review Date 11/10/15
Page Jof2

3.0 DEFINITIONS

Seasonal employment- any employee hired into a position for which customary employment is
6 months or less (e.g., employees hired for a semester would be considered seasonal)

Break period - is any time during the measurement period of at least four consecutive weeks
when an employee does not receive pay. The employee may have zero work hours, be on
a short break. or be terminated.

Full-time employee - The term “full-time employee™ in this policy refers to the ACA definition
of full-time employee. Under the ACA, a full-time emplovee is one who is employed an
average of 30 or more hours of service per week. This policy adopts 130 hours of service
per month as the monthly equivalent of 30 hours of service per week.

Adjunct Faculty - Adjunct faculty are defined as temporary part time non-tenure track teaching
positions (salary based on credit hours assigned) that do not meet the definition of full-
time, temporary or term appointment faculty

Administrative Period - A period of one month for making determinations of full-time status
of on-going employees and for offering/implementing full-time employee health
insurance coverage for the ensuing Stability Period. The administrative period shall also
be that one month period immediately following the initial Measurement Period for
newly hired variable employees.

Health Insurance Plan Eligibility - Full-time employees who work an average of no fewer
than 30 hours per workweek are eligible for benefits to include health insurance. If a new
employee is reasonably expected to work on average no fewer than 30 hours per
workweek at the time of hire, the employee must be automatically treated as full-time and
offered health insurance coverage within the new hire enrollment period.

Initial Measurement Period - A designated period of time used to determine whether a newly
hired employee is full-time. Southern University’s initial measurement period for all
employees employed as of September 1, 2014 will be from September 1, 2014 to
November 30, 2014.

Non-Benefit-Eligible Employee - A non-benefit-eligible employee is one who, but for the ACA,
would not have been considered full-time by an institution nor would have been
considered eligible for health insurance coverage prior to January 1, 2015,

Semester - Southern University divides its academic year into three semesters: Fall, Spring and
Summer.

Stability Period - An annual designated period of twelve (12) months during which Southern
University will offer health insurance coverage to all full-time employees. For on-going
emplovees, the stability period coincides with the calendar year which serves as Southern
University’s health insurance plan year, January | to December 31.

Standard Measurement Period - An annual designated period of twelve (12) months used 1o




Policy No. sUS1I12

Revision No, 1
Date of Revision 11/10/15
Last Review Date 11/10/15
Page 4012

determine whether an on-going employee is full-time. The standard measurement period
runs from Januaryl through December 3 1.

Variable Employee - An employee for whom it cannot reasonably be determined at the time of
hire whether the individual will be regularly scheduled 1o work more than 30 hours per
workweek.

4.0  POLICY

Pursuant to the provisions of the ACA, the University must offer health insurance to all
employees who work an average of 30 or more hours per week (or 130 per month) over a
measurement period. The State of Louisiana Office of Group Benefits has the authority 1o
establish the eligibility criteria for participation in the State Employee Health Plan.

Adjunct faculty (as herein defined for ACA purposes) who work an average of 30 hours or more
weekly (or 130 per month) over a measurement period will be ACA-eligible for the State
Employee Health Plan. All other employees who are not benefits-eligible (1.e. temporary, season
employees) who work an average of 30 hours or more weekly over a measurement period will
be ACA-eligible for the State Employee Health Plan.

ACA Measurement Period

The measurement period for current employees runs from September 1 to November 30 yearly.
New hires will have their own individual measurement periods based on their hire.

In all cases, during the measurement period, the number of hours reported for all active
appointments with the University will be counted toward determining ACA-eligibility. If
determined to be ACA-eligible. the employee will be offered the opportunity to participate in the
State Employee Health Plan and can elect coverage to be effective during the stability period as
defined herein.

Reporting of Hours Worked to Determine ACA Eligibility

A determination must be made at an employee’s start date whether the employee is a full time,
part time, seasonal

All employees who are not benefits-eligible as herein defined will either be required to report
hours worked weekly or will have hours identified, as described below, to determine ACA-
eligibility during each measurement period. The rate of pay for employees appointed to salaried
positions is not affected by any hours reported pursuant to this policy to determine ACA-
eligibility.




Policy No. Susi2

Revision No, 1
Date of Revision 11710115
Last Review Date 1110415
Page Sof2

Failure by employees to accurately report actual hours worked or falsification of hours worked
for ACA purposes will be reviewed to determine if there may be grounds for disciplinary action,
up to and including termination of employment.

Hourly Employees:

By the end of each work week, hourly employees must report the number of actual hours worked
each day on all active assignments using the appropriate time reporting code in the Banner
System.

Work Study Student Employees:

The hours worked on positions funded by Work-Study funds do not count toward eligibility for
health insurance coverage under ACA. Work-Study funded employees should be appointed to
positions established specifically for that purpose.

Graduate and Undergraduate Student Employees:

Students should not meet ACA eligibility during the applicable measurement period because
studemts are allowed to work 20 hours per week only. A student may become eligible if the
student had a nonstudent position during all or part of the applicable measurement period.

Adjunct Faculty Who Are Not Benefits-eligible, Designated as Instructor of Record:

Adjunct faculty who are not benefits-eligible are not required to track and report time for work
associated with a course for which the employee is the instructor of record. Two and one fourth
(2 .25) hours of work time will be automatically counted for every academic credit hour for
which the adjunct faculty serves as the instructor of record. This credited time includes
preparation for instruction, instruction, grading: one (1) hour will be counted for required
services outside of the classroom such as office hours, departmental meetings, etc. A total of
3.25 hours will be counted for each academic credit hour. For example, a 3 credit-hour course
will count as 9.75 hours worked.

'he data to determine these “adjunct” hours worked will be derived from faculty workload data

associated with instructor of record as designated by college dean, chair, program leader and
Academic AfTairs,

5.0 Administrative Procedure

Any employee that is reasonably expected to meet the ACA definition of full-time employee
must be offered health insurance. This definition includes:

Ln




Policy No. SUS112

Revision No. 1
Date of Revision L1/10/15
Last Review Daite 11710715
Page fiof2

* Reasonably expected to work an average of least 30 hours per week.
« Employment has a duration of six months or longer

The Office of Human Resources will review the summaries of hours actually worked for adjunct
and all other non-benefit-eligible employees on an annual basis to coincide with Southern
University's calendar year, which also serves as the benefits’ plan year for purposes of
determining health insurance coverage eligibility,

The Office of Human Resources will review newly hired adjunct and other non-benefit-eligible
employees after the initial measurement period and after an entire standard measurement period.

Once an adjunct or other non-benelit-eligible employee has been employed for an initial
measurement period and an entire standard measurement period, the employee is tested by the
Office of Human Resources for full-time status as an on-going employee, beginning with the
immediately ensuing standard measurement period.

An employee who tests as full-time during the initial measurement period., but not as full-time
during an overlapping or immediately following standard measurement period will continue to
be treated full-time until the end of the stability period associated with the initial measurement
period.

An employee who does not test as full-time during the initial measurement period but who tests
as full-time during the overlapping or immediately following standard measurement period will
be treated as a full-time employee for the entire stability period that corresponds to the standard
measurement period.

ACA Periods

Existing Employees (hired on or before 09/1/2014)
o Initial Measurement Period for existing employees — 09/01/2014 thru 11/30/2014
« Initial Administrative Period following Initial Measurement Period - 12/01/2014-
12/31/2014
» Initial Stability Period - 01/01/15-12/31/2015
« Measurement Period — 09/1/XX-11/31/XX of each subsequent year
« Administrative Period — 12/1/XX - 12/31/XX of each subsequent year
« Stability Period = 01/01/XX — 12/31/XX of each subsequent year

Newly Hired Employees (hired after 09/1/2014)
« [nitial Measurement Period — 6 month period beginning the date of hire if hired on the
first of the month or the first of the month following hire date.
« Initial Administrative Period following Initial Measurement Period — full calendar month
beginning after the conclusion of the Initial Measurement Period.




Policy No. SUS112

Revision No. 1
Date of Revision 11/10/15
Last Review Date 111015
Page Tof2

« Initial Stability Period - 12 month period beginning at the conclusion or the
Administrative Period following the initial Measurement Period for which benefit
¢ligibility must be extended without regard to actual hours of service.

« The standard measurement for existing employees will be running in the background and
the new hire will transition to the standard periods.

Break Information

Unpaid time lasting less than four consecutive weeks -Continue existing measurement & stability
periods. The weeks with zero hours reported are calculated in the average calculation.

Unpaid time lasting from 4 to 26 consecutive weeks-The weeks with zero hours reported are not
included in the average calculation. Therefore, the average will be calculated using fewer than 52
weeks. The employee continues in the same measurement period he/she was in when the break
started.

Unpaid time lasting more than 26 consecutive weeks-On returning to work, the employee may be
treated as a new hire with a new 12 month measurement period that begins the month of rehire.

Unpaid Family and Medical Leave and unpaid USERRA (military) leave-These weeks are not
included in the average calculation. Therefore, the average will be calculated using fewer than 52
weeks,

EXCLUSIONS

MNone.




Policy No. SLIS115

Revision No. 1
Date of Revision 11/10/115
Last Review Date 11/10/15
Page 1of10

POLICY

Subject: Drug Free Workplace Policy — Amended

1.0 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

Recognizing that drug use poses health and safety hazards to employees/students and 1o the
community at large. the University considers the abuse of drugs 1o be a very serious matter, one
that cannot be tolerated in the workplace or classroom. Therefore, it is the policy of the Southern
University and A & M System to maintain a drug free workplace and environment conducive to
the learning process. All employees/students are notified that it is unlawful to manufacture
distribute. dispense, possess, or use any illegal drug or alcohol or to abuse controlled substances
in the workplace and classroom or other related areas associated with the learning process
including the dormitories. Such actions are prohibited on all University property and at any other
location where employees/students are conducting University business.

2.0 RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX

a1 Procedure Responsibility

bl

The Vice President of Human Resources is responsible for the
development and maintenance of this Policy.

bl
b

1.2 The Vice President of Human Resources or the Campus HR Director
serves as the Human Resources Officer.

2.1.3 Emplovees are responsible for following the policy statements set forth in
this policy.

bd
=

Managers are responsible for following the policy statements set forth in
this policy.

2.1.5 The Human Resources Officer or his/her designee will implement this
policy.

3.0 DEFINITIONS

As used in this policy, the following terms have the indicated meaning and will be applicable in
relation to the Drug Free Workplace policy.




10.

Policy No. SUS115

Revision No. 1
Date of Revision 11/10/15
Last Review Date 11/10/15
Page 2of10

Drug - any substance, other than food, which when inhaled, injected, consumed, or
introduced into the body in any manner, alters mood or function.

Drug Abuse - any continuing use of an illegal drug, alcohol, or controlled substance which
produces problems for the user, his/her family or society at large.

Unlawful Manufacture - to plant, cultivate, harvest. process, make, prepare, or otherwise
engage in any part of the production of a drug by propagation, extraction, chemical synthesis,
compounding, or any combination of the same and includes packaging, repackaging,
labeling, and other activities incidental to production.

Distribute — to deal in, ship, transport or deliver. This does not include the administering or
dispensing of a drug by a person authorized or qualified to do so (i.e. physician, pharmacist,
ete.).

Dispense — 10 sell, leave with, give away, dispose of, or deliver.

Possess or Possession — having control over a thing or substance. Possession may not be
inferred solely from mere access to the thing or substance through ownership or occupation
of the premises upon which the thing or substance is found.

Use — the taking, partaking or utilizing of a drug or other controlled substance.

Drug Abuse Offense — corrupting another with drugs, trafficking in drugs, abusing drugs
(including abuse of alcohol). possessing drug abuse instruments, permitting a dangerous
drug, processing drug documents illegally, abusing harmful intoxicants, or dispensing drug
samples illegally; violating any state or federal law that is substantially equivalent to any of
the above offenses; violating any state or federal law in which planting, cultivating,
harvesting, processing, making, manufacturing, producing, shipping, transporting, delivering,
acquiring, possessing, storing, distributing, dispensing, selling, including

Controlled Substance - a drug, compound, mixture, preparation, or other substance as
defined in 40:961 to 40:995 of the Louisiana Revised Code, or as defined by applicable
statutes of other states and the Federal government.

Reasonable Suspicion — a belief based on objective and documented facts 1o lead a prudent
University authorized supervisor to suspect that employee/student is using drugs or alcohol.

% ]



Policy No. SUs115

Revision Mo, 1
Date of Revision 11/10/15
Last Review Date 11/10/15
Page Jof 10
4.0 POLICY
SCOPE

A. Compliance with University Substance Abuse Policy

All employees/students of the Southern University System are expected to abide by the terms of
this policy. An employee/student found in violation of this policy shall be subject to appropriate
sanctions and penalties Such penalties and sanctions may include but are not limited to referral
for counseling, written or oral reprimands, suspensions with or without pay, or termination, in
accordance with the established rights of the employee /student, including the right to due
process. All University employees/students who are engaged in employment or other work under
the terms of any grant from an agency of the Federal government shall as a condition of
employment be required to:

. Acknowledge receipt of and to abide by the terms of the University's drug free policy.

z Notify his’her administrative supervisor of any criminal drug statute conviction for a
violation no later than five (5) days afier such conviction any employee who fails to report such a
substance abuse conviction within five (5) days will be subject to sanctions, up to and including
termination of employment.

3. Upon receipt of notice under the preceding paragraph or if the University should
otherwise receive actual notice of such conviction, the University shall notify the granting or
contracting agency within ten (10) days after receiving such notice.

4. The principal investigator of any grant, project, or contract from a Federal agency is
required to insure that each employee engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy of
this policy and be required to acknowledge its receipt.

&, No identified employee/student will be allowed on University property and at any other
location where employees/students are conducting University business under the influence of
drugs, alcohol. or any abused controlled substance (for alcohol use, see Student Alcohol Use).

6. Upan receipt of a notice of conviction of an employee for violation of any criminal drug
statute, the University, within thirty (30) days of receiving such notice, shall:

Take appropriate Human Resources action against such an employee subject to
established disciplinary procedures, up to and including termination, in accordance
with requirements of due process.

B. Searches and Inspections
The University authorized supervisor has the right to conduct on the spot searches and



Policy No. SLUS115

Revision No. 1
Date of Revision 1110415
Last Review Date 11/10/15
Page Jalld

inspections of employees/students and their personal effects as described above if said supervisor
has a "reasonable suspicion” or the employees/students are in violation of this policy.

C. Drug Testing Searches and inspections under this policy may also include unannounced Urine
Drug Screening. This test may be used under the following circumstances:

. For pre-employment examinations,

. When an authorized University supervisor has a reasonable suspicion or just cause that an
employee/student is intoxicated, using or under the influence of controlled drugs.

. When an employee/student is found in possession of a suspected controlled substance or
a controlled substance is found in an area controlled by the employee/student,

. All employees who are entitled to assert a ¢laim pursuant to the worker’s compensation

laws of Louisiana shall be subject to, and shall cooperate in, post-accident drug testing. With or
without prior notification, any employee in an accident that occurs during the course and scope of
employment shall be required to submit to drug and/or alcohol testing as soon as practicable
under La. R.S. 23:1081, whether or not a compensable injury is immediately claimed by the
employee, where and accident occurs under any circumstance, regardless of fault, which
necessitates, or should reasonably necessitate, medical attention to the employee as determined

by the employee, the employee’s supervisor(s), or the department head, regardless of whether the
employee actually desires, agrees 1o, seeks, or receives medical attention.

(La. R.S. 23:1081 and Louisiana Administrative Code Title 40, Part 1, Chapter 15
allows an employer to test an employee for drugs and alcohol when the employee
receives a personal injury from an accident arising out of and in the course of his
employment)

D. Drug and Alcohol Testing Procedures

Testing shall be performed as provided for in the Louisiana Administrative Code Title 40, Part 1.
Chapter 15. Testing shall be performed at the most practical hospital or medical facility. ORM
reserves the right to require employees to submit to additional testing. If warranted, a
representative of the agency shall transport the employee being tested to and from the testing site.
Under no circumstance should any employee who is believed to be impaired or under the
influence of any drug or alcohol be permitted to operate a motor vehicle.

E. Violations

Employees found to test positive or failing to promptly submit to testing under this policy may be
subject to dismissal or denial of their Workers™ Compensation benefits pursuant to La. R.S.
23:1081. Employees and Supervisors may also be subject to discipline, up to and including
dismissal, in accordance with their agency’s drug-free policy for failing to cooperate with, or to
apply, the post-accident drug testing requirements outlined in this policy.

F. Due Process
If any disciplinary action is taken against an employee under this policy, such an employee has
the right to due process. The Faculty Handbook, Employee Handbook, the Student Code of



Policy No. SUSs115

Revision No. 1
Date of Revision 11/10415
Last Review Date 11/10/15
Page Soflo

Conduct lists these procedures.

G. Good Faith Effort

The University. in adopting and implementing this policy pursuant to the Drug Free Workplace
Act of 1988, further certifies that it will make a good faith effort to maintain a drug-free
workplace and to respect the privacy rights of its employees.

50 ATTACHMENTS

None




R esolution

%WA, Fall Commencement Exercises are scheduled for the campus of

Southern University and A&M College at Baton Rouge on Friday, December 11, 2015
at 10:30 a. m. in the F. G. Clark Activity Center; and

%@M there are approximately 512 prospective graduates at Southern

University at Baton Rouge, who are to receive Bachelor’s degrees, Master’s degrees
and Ph.D. degrees.

HNow, thergfore be it resolved/that the degrees conferred upon the candidates

for graduation at the Commencement Exercises at Southern University and A&M
College at Baton Rouge submitted by President-Chancellor Ray L. Belton, upon the
approval and recommendation of the Faculty, Council of Academic Deans, and
appropriate administration be, and they are hereby approved.

Be it frther resolved that the list of graduates may be supplemented or

modified as is necessary to carry out the intent of this resolution.

Cortffeate

We, the duly qualified and acting officers of the Board of Supervisors of the
Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanicalollege, do hereby certify that
the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a retion g -o,g-/ by the Southern
University Board of Supervisors as its regula geting op th day of November,

2015.

Board of Supervisors, Southern University
and Agricultural and Mechanical College

Leon R. Tarver II, Chair
Board of Supervisors, Southern University
and Agricultural and Mechanical College




R esolution

%MA, Hooding and Commencement Exercises for Fall 2015 graduates of the

Southern Law Center will be on Friday, January 8, 2016 at 6 p.m. at the Smith-Brown Memorial
Student Union on the Southern University Baton Rouge Campus;

%&dé, there are approximately 36 prospective graduates at Southern University Law
Center, who are to receive a Juris Doctor Degree.

% Wm be it resolved that the Juris Doctor Degree conferred upon the

candidates for graduation at the Commencement Exercises at Southern University Law Center
submitted by Interim-Chancellor John Pierre, upon the approval and recommendation of the
Faculty, and Law Center administration be, and they are hereby approved.

@; 4 /{/«/flﬁ(fr résolved/that the list of graduates may be supplemented or modified as
is necessary to carry out the intent of this resolution.

We, the duly qualified and acting officers of the Board of Supervisors of the Southern

University and Agricultural and Mechanical College, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true
and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Southern University at its regular meeting on the

27" day of November, 2015. ;

Ray LB ton,VSecxletary
Board of $upervisors, Southern University
and Agticultural and Mechanical College

Leon R. Tarver II, Chair
Board of Supervisors, Southern University
and Agricultural and Mechanical College



EXCELLENCE * INTEGRITY * ACCOUNTABILITY * SERVICE
OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR

Dlesolution

%%, there are approximately 126 prospective graduates at Southern University at
Shreveport, who are to receive a Certificate or Associate Degree.

% M%Mé@t’ém:fafa&ﬁhat the Certificate or Associate Degree conferred upon

the candidates for completion submitted by Interim-Chancellor S. Albert Gilliam, upon the
approval and recommendation of the Faculty, and Southern University at Shreveport
administration be, and they are hereby approved.

@; (’é/{mf%&)& resolved/hat the list of graduates may be supplemented or modified as

is necessary to carry out the intent of this resolution.

We, the duly qualified and acting officers of the Board of Supervisors of the Southern
University and Agricultural and Mechanical College, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true
and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Southern University at its regular meeting on the
27" day of November, 2015.

Dr. Ray L. Belton, Secretary
Board of Supervisors, Southern University
and Agricultural and Mechanical College

Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Chair
Board of Supervisors, Southern University
and Agricultural and Mechanical College

3050 MARTIN LutHER KING, JR. DRIVE * SHREVEPORT, Louisiana 71107
PHONE: (318) 670-9312 « Fax (318) 670-6374

www.SUSLA.EDU
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT SHREVEPORT DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF RACE, COLOR, NATIONAL ORIGIN, GENDER OR DISABILITY.




o SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY November 2015
NEW ORLEANS

Moving Ahead

A Message from the Chancellor

Myeisha Keith Crowned Miss SUNO 2015

ith the theme, “A Queen’s Won-
derland, ” Myeisha Keith was
crowned Miss SUNO 2015 at the
Coronation Wednesday, Oct. 28
in the SUNO Gym. The other members of the
2015 Royal Court are: Miss Senior Kala Brookin,
RrevT " Miss Junior Chelsea Bazile, Miss Sophomore
et o e other, Secrge Gl atthe Dericka Wallace, Miss Freshman Caitlin Keith.

Coronation Wednesdoy, Oct. 28 in the
SUND gym

SUNO Alum Ron Gardner
Honored at 2015 BASH
The SUNO Foundation hon- |

ored Ron Gardner's legacy
during its annual BASH at
the Hyatt Regency New
Orleans Friday, Oct. 30.

Mr. Gardner, who died Sept. 2T aflers
long illness, was the vice chancellor for
Administrative, Community & Security
al the LSU Health Sciences Center New
Orleans. He graduated from SUNO in
1969 with a bachelor’s degree in Biology
and Chemistry. The New Orleans — . .
Sports Foundation donated $10,000 to KNIGHTS OUT AGAINST CRIME All the student cfubs and organizations come

together Tuesdoy, Oct. 13 to hast o "Night Out Agoinst Crime™ event on the Quad
The event feotured music, gomes, free food, foce painting ond more

establish a scholarship for biology stu-
dents in Mr. Gardner’s name




College of Arts & Sciences
Dr. Lisa Mims-Devezin, Dean

P Dr. Lisa Mims-Devezin participated by teleconference in the Louisiana Board of Re-
gents General Education/State Articulation September 2. She also gave the welcome ad-
dress on behalf of SUNO to the Louisiana Justice Symposium on September 12. On Sep-
tember 29, Dr. Mims-Devezin participated in the The Addictive Behaviors Counseling
and Prevention (ABCP) Program, Substance Abuse Awareness Week program.

NATURAL SCIENCES

» Dr. Rachid Belmasrour, assistant professor of Mathematics, Dr. Carl P. Johnson, pro-
fessor of Chemistry, Ms. Phyllis Okwan, Mathematics instructor, and Dr. lllya Tietzel,
associate professor of Biology received the 2015 Faculty Role Model Awards at the 16t
Annual Minority Access, Inc., Conference, Baltimore, MD on September 26. Dr. Joe
Omojola, professor of Mathematics and Physics, and Dr. Murty S. Kambhampati, profes-
sor of Biology, nominated the awardees.

P Mr. Sanj Powell, a Forensic Science major, has received the 2015 Floyd E. McDonald
Scholarship for Forensic Science under the leadership of Dr. Pamela Marshall, interim
director, Forensic Science Program. Congra

» Dr. Bashir Atteia reviewed a paper, “Building a mathematical model synthesis of me-
thyl ether 5-acetyl-2- pyrrolecarboxylic acid,” for American Research Journal of Mathe-
matics. He submitted an abstract, “Differential effects of Sildenafil and Tadalafil on hu-
man penile smooth muscle cells: New insights for old mechanisms,” to the 2015 South-
east Regional IDeA Conference, November 11-13, 2016 and at the Beau Rivage Resort and
Casino in Biloxi Mississippi. LBRN paid his registration fee of $450. Editorial Involve-
ment: He will serve as a Review Editor for Frontiers in Pharmacology, Section - Experi-
mental Pharmacology and Drug Discovery.

» Dr. lllya Tietzel, together with SUNO students Diamanika
Moss and Donald Brown, high school student Monteranique
Ginn and colleague Dr. Christian Clement submitted an ab-
stract for the 2016 Gulf of Mexico Oil Spill and Ecosystem Sci-
ence Conference February 1-4, 2016, The abstract is about
“Toxicity of Crude Oil and Nanoparticles on Caenorhabditis
elegans.” One of his mentees, Mr. Keith A. Perkins, was ac-

- cepted for participation of Council on Undergraduate Re-
search’s Research Experiences for Undergraduates Symposium, which took place Octo-
ber 25-26, for his research about “ Auditory frequency sensitivity of single neurons in the
amphibian inferior colliculus and the effects of descending modulation” at LSU HSC in
the lab of Dr. Hamilton Farris.




Arts & Sciences continued

Dr, Illya Tietzel held workshop sessions in the College of Education & Human Development
on Sept. 5 and 12 for the Education majors in preparation for the “PRAXIS Elementary Educa-
tion: Multiple Subjects 5031.” His sessions were aimed at preparing for “Science as Inquiry,”
“Life Science,” and “Physical Science.” The workshop series is organized by Dr. Tanisca. Wil-
son of the College of Education & Human Development.

» Dr. Christian Clement has submitted an LA BoR R&D RCS Notice of intent (Reference #
20130009247) for a full proposal to study a neurovirulent strain of Herpes Simplex virus type 1
and its effect in neuronal inflammation and neuronal damage. The purpose of this grant is to
increase overall molecular research on the SUNO Campus and train students in cell / tissue
culture techniques, molecular biology (including DNA, RNA analyses and Western blotting),
cell biology and biochemistry. The ultimate goal is to use this grant as a pivot to deepen col-
laboration with LSUHSC colleagues, including Dr. W.J. Lukiw, professor of Neuroscience and
Ophthalmology at the LSUHSC Neuroscience Center of Excellence to write more NIH grants
(R15, R21, R01) and eventually transform the lab into a SUNO Neuroscience and Drug Deliv-
ery Center of Excellence. He also is submitting an abstract with LBRN sponsorship to the SE
Regional IDeA Conference in November 11-13, 2016 at the Beau Rivage Resort and Casino in
Biloxi Mississippi.

As Pls, Drs. Tietzel, Clement, Ojo (no longer at SUNO), Marshall, and Zhen are working on
coordinated strategies to mentor and train more SUNO students. Under this grant, Pls have
expanded the pool to include Drs. Heon Kim, Rachid Belmasrour and Mostafa Elaasar to tap
into their 3-D printing resources to benefit research and students. They have proposed and
started printing casts to be tested in bacteria/other microbes transfer experiments and eventu-
ally will serve as novel designs for “clean surfaces,” which are essential in interior design of
aircraft and spacecraft. The research is in consonance with Dr. Clement’s novel modeling of
diseases/disorders, drug development, neuroscience, ophthalmology research, and generally
R&D applications interests.

P Dr. Mostafa Elaasar sent a copy of 3+2 Mathematics and Electrical Engineering Dual Degree
curriculum draft (between SUNO and UNO) to Dr. Murty Kambhampati and he disseminated
the same to the mathematics and physics faculty for their review and feedback.

P Publications: SUNO Faculty together with other colleague collaborators, recently published
a paper “Blood Vascular Changes Associated with Chronic Active Multiple Sclerosis Plaques:
Detection by Anti-Human Brain Vascular Endothelia-Specific Monoclonal Antibodies” Journal
of Pharmaceutical Sciences and Pharmacology 2015.

Dr. Clement and his collaborators have published “Evolution of microRNA (miRNA) Struc-
ture and Function in Plants and Animals: Relevance to Aging and Disease” Front Microbiol
2015.



Arts & Sciences continued

SOCIAL SCIENCES

» Dr. John Penny

Dr. Penny was invited to the Sept. 1 WBOK round table discussion on crime, criminal justice, and so-
cial justice issues — a panoramic view of the socio-economic and criminal justice system in New Orle-
ans dwelling on status of crime, courts, police and other criminal justice agencies. He engaged the au-
dience in these topics with Dr. Peter Scharf of LSU Medical Center.

Dr. Penny, along with Southern University, hosted the Louisiana Justice Commission Symposium
Sept. 12. The theme was “Mental Health and Physical Health.” Presentations were made by Mr. L.J.
Young of the Orleans Parish Sheriff's Office, Mr. Ronald McClain, ].D,, L.CS.W,, and Dr. Nana Nan-
tambu. The Symposium was well-attended by the students. On Sept. 26, Dr. Penny attended the New
Hope Community Development Corporation meeting, which focused on the development of an after
school tutoring and academic enrichment for Kenner youth and the New
Hope Community Center.

» Dr. Evelyn Harrell

The Addictive Behaviors Counseling and Prevention (ABCP) Program and
the Students for the Prevention and Education of Substance Abuse hosted
Substance Abuse Awareness Week Sept. 28 - Oct, 2. This year’s theme was
“Mining the GAP (Crooming future Addiction Professionals).” This annual
event featured a Proclamation, Substance Abuse Awareness Day (SAAD),
Red Ribbon Day, and guest lectures.

On Sept. 28, Mr. Joseph Jackson, a graduate of SUNO's Criminal Justice MA Program, spoke to Dr.
Harrell's class on "Addiction and the Criminal Justice System.” Mr. Jackson is the program coordinator
" = —_ — for Pathways to Purpose, a reentry program
' 1 in Jefferson Parish for ex-offenders.

‘Mr. Artemus McFarland, a SUNO graduate
from the School of Social Work and the
ABCP BS Program, was the keynote speaker
for SAAD, on Sept. 29. Mr. McFarland is a
certified addiction counselor currently em-
ployed by Townsend Addiction Treatment
Center as a clinical manager in Metairie and
New Orleans. Thirty students received a cer-

. ‘tificate of completion during the SAAD Cer-
tificate Ceremony. Wednesday, Sept. 30 was Red Ribbon Day. The campus was asked to wear red rib-
bons in support of a commitment to substance abuse prevention and awareness.

» Dr. Patrick Webb

Research: Awaiting the receipt of proofs, for editorial purposes, of a book review that is slated for
publication within a peer-reviewed journal entitled Reasons. The book review is based upon the text
entitled, “The New Jim Crow: Mass Incarceration in the Age of Colorblindess” by Michelle Alexander
(2012).

Awaiting results from peer reviewers in relation to the submission of an article for publication with




Arts & Sciences continued

the Journal of Argument and Critigue. The article is entitled, “Does the Degree Matter: Measuring the
Extent of Professionalism within Policing.”

Submitted the required modifications related to a previously submitted collaborative-based manu-
script entitled, “ Acting White or Acting Right: An Examination of Racial Identity among College Stu-
dents within an HBCU,” which was accepted for publication by the Journal of Black Studies. Dr. Chris-
topher Linn, Associate Professor of Psychology, served as the co-author.

As a co-principle investigator, submitted the name of a student who characterizes an underrepresent-
ed population and has expressed interest in relation to the use of GIS capabilities within the greater
New Orleans area. Dr. George Amedee serves as the principle investigator of the grant funding pro-
ject.

Service (University/Community)
Participated with the Modular Building Safety Subcommittee within the College of Arts and Sciences,
Dr. Mims-Devezin, Dean/ Chair.

HEALTH INFORMATION MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS PROGRAM

» Conference

The 2015 American Health Information Management Association (AHIMA) Convention and Exhibit
was Sept. 26-30 at the Ernest N. Morial Convention Center. The 87t% annual convention’s theme was
“HIM without Walls.” The keynote speaker for this year was Robin Roberts, “Good Morning Ameri-
ca” co-anchor and author.

Faculty members Andrea Mignott, Pharissa Robinson, Sharon McGee, and Penny Harris were able to
attend and/ or volunteer at the convention. Many HIMS students attended the convention and volun-
teered as well. The students’ presence at the convention was very strong, and many received positive
feedback from the AHIMA convention staff, the Louisiana Health Information Management Associa-
tion (LHIMA), and vendors.

The convention included a career fair, in which the students were provided the opportunity to net-
work directly with national and local employers, and submit their resumes’ for potential employment
opportunities after graduation.

> Internships

Nine HIMS students have begun internship rotations at the University Medical Center of New Orle-
ans. The students are excited about the opportunity to implement the skills they have learned
throughout the program under the mentorship of HIM professionals.

GENERAL STUDIES PROGRAM

The General Studies Team continues to work on the Callback Initiative. Dr. Deneen Lewis invited Dr.
Joseph Coleman to present students in her Seminar for Major course. His topic was Narcissistic Per-
sonality Disorder. Dr. Lewis also attended a Civil Service Employee Workshop, sponsored by the Hu-
man Resources Department. She currently serves on the Safety Committee for the College of Arts &
Social Sciences.




Arts & Sciences continued

MUSEUM STUDIES PROGRAMS
P General Research
Dir. Sara Hollis attended the September meeting of the Women’s Caucus for Art, which she is currently a

Professor Haitham Eid and Ms. Evans presented “The Museum Innovation
| Model: Effective Techniques and Strategies for Innovation in Museums” at the
puisiana Association of Museums (Sept. 13 - 15) in Alexandria.

Professor Eid submitted his Ph.D. dissertation and will travel to the United
Kingdom to defend his thesis on Dec. 17. His dissertation investigates the con-
cept of innovation within the museum context and proposes a model for inno-
wvation in museum called the “Museum Innovation Model.” The model is based
‘on an intensive research at three national museums in the United States and
United Kingdom, including Cooper Hewitt, Smithsonian Design Museum
(New York, NY), the National WWII Museum (New Orleans, LA), and Imperi-
al War Museum (London, UK),

> Campus
Dr. Hollis is preparing an exhibition of her photographs taken at SUNO from 1973 to the present for
SUNO's Library.

Dr, Hollis and Professor Eid attended the Arts & Sciences College Meeting for September. She also attend-
ed the September Faculty Senate Meeting and the September Strategic Planning
Committee Meeting.

Professor Eid attended the Modular Building Safety Committee-Building A, B, and C Sub-committee
Meeting,.

» Community

Dr. Hollis attended the lecture by Dr. Leon Waters at the New Orleans Museum of Art. On Sept. 9, Dr.
Hollis and Professor Eid attended the Community Coffee networking day at the Joan Mitchell Center on
Bayou Road. They also attended the opening of “Kia Lavi Ye?” or “What is Life?” a Haitian art exhibition
at the Arts Council Exchange Gallery Sept. 11. The exhibition is curated by Nic Brierre Aziz, the son of
M.A. Museum Studies Student Mrs. Monique Aziz, a private collector who owns a valuable collection of
Haitian art.

On Sept. 23, Dr. Hollis, Prof. Eid and two Museum Studies classes attended Artist Mash at the Joan Mitch-
ell Center with a side visit to the Community Book Center on Bayou Road owned by Museum Studies stu-
dent Mrs. Vera Warren Williams. The Artist Mash presented the works of four national and local artists to
the New Orleans art and museum community.




College of Business & Public Administration
Dr. lgwe Udeh, Dean

ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE INITIATIVES

» Center for Entrepreneurship Research

On Aug. 20, SUNO Chancellor Victor Ukpolo approved the creation of the Center for Entrepreneur-
ship Research (CER) within the College of Business & Public Administration. The mission of the CER
is to plan and implement high level and vigorous research on entrepreneurship; to develop current
and aspiring professionals regionally and internationally through entrepreneurship education and
research; to develop research tools for broad dissemination; and to contribute to the mission of the
SUNO College of Business & Public

Administration.

The goals of the Center are to make a major contribution to the field of entrepreneurship and innova-
tion through research; to develop pedagogical and applied tools from research findings; to accelerate
the economic impacts of entrepreneurial activities; to create new knowledge in the area of Social En-
trepreneurship; to provide incubation to direct and indirect music and video creation businesses; to
encourage the integration of Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) into entre-
preneurial research activities; and to generate external funding to support CER vision, mission and
goals. The Center will be run as a cooperative by the CBA faculty and staff in collaboration with vari-
ous units at SUNO.

» Dr. Igwe E. Udeh, Alvin James Lawson Endowed Professor and Dean, College of Business & Pub-
lic Administration, was a member of a national panel of judges for the 2015 Miller Lite Tap The Fu-
ture Business Plan Competition in Chicago, IL Friday, Sept. 18 to Sunday, Sept. 20. The event was in
the corporate headquarters of Miller Lite in Chicago and hosted by Flowers Communications Group,
a premier public relations and marketing company:.

The panel reviewed written business plans from champions of six regional business plan competi-
tions all over the United States. On Saturday, Sept. 19, each of the six regional champions was given
an opportunity to pitch a plan for a $200,000 cash award before a high panel of experts from busi-
ness, media, banking, education, advertising, law and entrepreneurship.

The winner of the $200,000 competition was Endovo, a Chicago-based startup company with an in-
novative education product targeted at the prison system. Their product seeks to reduce the rate of
recidivism through credentialing of long term offenders during and after their incarceration.

P Minimum Wage Debate

The College of Business & Public has launched the planning for the debate on the question, “Should
the Congress Increase the Minimum Wage?” The debate was Nov. 3-4 during the College of Business
Week. Twenty-six undergraduate students submitted applications to participate in the debate. Six-
teen debate participants and four alternatives were chosen from the 26.

The College formed a Minimum Wage Debate Planning Committee consisting of 10 faculty and staff
members from the CBA and the College of Arts and Social Sciences. Two faculty members from the
Communication program (Dr. Sarah Jackson and Dr. Douglas Marshall) will serve as debate coaches.




College of Business continued

Seven judges also were chosen.

The Planning Committee met Sept. 10 and 17. On Sept. 21, the director,
Dr. Frank Martin, scheduled mandatory orientation meetings on Sept.
21, Sept. 28 and Oct. 1. Meeting for prospective participants. Twenty
enthused students showed up for the orientation. The prospective par-
ticipants received a binder of debate materials that provided back-

ground information, arguments for, and arguments against increasing
the minimum wage.

Leading up to the debate, Dr. Marshall and Dr. Jackson met with the participants weekly for

four weeks. By the time of the debate, students were well informed on the issues and on debate
procedures.

== pHigh School Recruitment Team

* | Three faculty members in the College of Business & Public Admin-
istration - Dr. Biruk Alemayehu, assistant professor of Public Ad-
ministration; Dr. Patricia Robertson, assistant professor of Public Ad-
ministration; and Dr. Robert Elliott, assistant professor of Computer
Information Systems - created a recruitment team that has been visit-
ing area high schools, community

colleges and places of employment to recruit new students for their
disciplines. So far this Fall semester, the team has made recruitment
trips to Edna Karr High School and Warren Eastern High School,
where they met with high school seniors, juniors, and even freshman
and sophomores to make a case for going to college, especially to
SUNO’s Public Administration or Computer Information Systems
disciplines. The team has been coordinating their visits with the
SUNO recruitment and admissions officers. Additional trips to gov-
ernment agencies, community colleges, and area high schools are

I planned throughout the semester.

- National Black MBA Association Conference

Dr. Adrine Harrell-Carter, assistant professor of Business, attend-
ed the 2015 National Black MBA Association (NBMBAA) Confer-
ence and Career Fair in Orlando, FL, Sept. 12-18. Dr. Harrell-
Carter travelled with the SUNO NBMBAA Chapter member -
Anjuiel Knight; Brittany Bryant; Dwayne Hayes; Rodney Marco;
Jarred Jupiter; Christian Addison; Monica Chambliss; Troy De-
ruise; Medina Drake; Kristen Glass. The NBMBAA Conference is
one of the largest career fairs in the nation targeted at African-
American college students as well as any member of the association.

» Fall 2015 Orientation
The CBA Office of Student Services (OSS), under the leadership of Director Timotea Bailey,




College of Business continued

hosted the Fall 2015 Orientation for New and Transfer CBA
Students Thursday, Sept. 10 in the College of Business Build-
ing, Room 100. During the session, students were introduced
to CBA leadership and faculty, and empowered with infor-
mation to guide them in successtully navigating their curricu-
lum and academic life, Representatives from the Center for
Comprehensive Communication (tutoring), the SUNO Li-
brary, Office of the Vice Chancellor for Administration and
Finance, Office of Student Activities & Organizations, and the
E-Learning Department talked to the students, answered
questions and shared valuable tips.

P Small Business Incubator Center

Construction of the SUNO Small Business Incubator
Center was completed in May. The ribbon-cutting cere-
- mony was June 3, The building can incubate as many as
10 businesses at once. It also comes equipped with one
video-editing studio, one sound-editing studio, two lec-
'\ ture rooms, one computer lab, two conference rooms,
-one branch banking facility, and administrative offices
for the director and staff of the Small Business Develop-
- ment & Management Institute (SBDMI). Tenancy nego-
Hations with potential occupants is ongoing, For infor-
mation, contact Mrs. Cynthia Beaulieu, the SBDMI Di-

¥ rector at cbeaulieu@suno.edu or 504-286-5032.

P Microsoft/CompTIA A+ Certification Boot Camp

Six SUNO students, two faculty members and two SUNO staff
members participated in a new eight-week intensive training to
prepare for the Microsoft/ CompTIA A+ certification Boot Camp ~
Friday, Sept. 18 in the College of Business Building. This was the |§ .\
third Microsoft/ CompTIA Boot Camp and was facilitated once “‘
again by Mr. Randy Wild. Mr. Wild holds several certifications, §
including Microsoft Certified System Administration; A+;
CompTIA Network; and Microsoft Desktop Support Technician.

This training was the first step towards getting these students
and faculty prepared to participate in the Basic MICROSOFT (MTA-MCSA) Boot Camp. Meanwhile,
the fourth Basic CISCO Networking Boot Camp started Saturday, Sept. 26 with 10 students and fac-
ulty and will end on Saturday, December 5. The CISCO Boot Camp is facilitated by Mr. Sam Camar-
da, a highly credentialed CISCO network professional.

The two Boot Camps were made possible through a 2014 Louisiana Board of Regents grant, and are

aimed at increasing the enrollment, retention, graduation and job placement rates for information
technology, education, and business majors. Dr. Igwe Udeh is the Principal Investigator of this grant.




College of Business continued

P Dr. Frank Martin, chair of the Business Entrepreneurship Department, participated in the
State and Local Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Panel, which certifies small businesses
as disadvantaged for the City of New Orleans, the New Orleans Sewerage & Water Board, the
Aviation Board, and Caesar’s (formerly Harrah's) Casino, on Sept. 24.

JOURNAL FUBLICATION

Faisal Al-Khateeb Jiang Wu, Chun-Tao Chang, Mei-Chuan Cheng, Jinn-Tsair Teng, “Inventory
Management For Fresh Produce When The Time-Varying Demand Depends On Product Freshness, Stock
Level And Expiration Date”, International Journal of Systems Science: Operations & Logistics
(http:/ / www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/ 23302674.2015.1068880) July 28, 2015, pp1-10.

CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE
Drs. Charles Briggs; Adnan Omar; Faisal Alkhateeb; David Alijani and Obyung Kwun attended
the Teaching Professor Technology Conference in New Orleans, LA, Oct. 2-4.

Dr. Igwe E. Udeh, Dean & Professor, attended the Southern Business Administration Associa-
tion (SBAA) Conference in New Orleans, LA October 8-10.

Drs. David Alijani, Obyung Kwun, Nabie Conteh, and Patricia Robertson attend the Internation-
al Association of Business & Public Administration Disciplines (IABPAD) in Las Vegas, Neva-
da, Oct. 22-25.

Dr. Muhammed Miah attended the Education Special Interest Group (EDSIG) for AITP Associ-
ation of Information Technology in Wilmington, NC, Nov. 1-4.
Dr. Frank Martin will be attending SACS-COC Conference in Houston, TX, Dec. 5-8.

» SBDMI Workshops/Seminars/Trainings/Meetings (August-September 2015)
Mrs. Cynthia Beaulieu, Director, Small Business Development & Management Institute, reported
the following activities and achievements during August-September 2015:

e Met with committee to discuss development of Incubator proposal for Media Incubator;
Aug. 4; Dr. Udeh, Ms. Baily, Dr. Frank Martin, Dr. Omar & Cynthia Beaulieu

¢ Notary Class Beginning; Aug. 25 and 29; seven participants; the Small Business Incubator
Center. Class prepares participants to pass the Louisiana Notary Exam scheduled Dec. 5; Ms.
Diana Thomas, Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu and Ms. Suzan Jackson Esq, Attorney, Instructor

e Conference Call HBCU-CDAC; Aug. 5; Discuss planning for upcoming HBCU-CDAC Inno-
vation and Economic Development Conference scheduled February 2016, which will be in New
Orleans; Ron Butler, Director, Board Members & Cynthia Beaulieu.

e Live Broadcast of WBOK Radio program; August 6,13, 20 & 27 “SUNO Small Business In-
stitute Network,” sponsored by SUNO Small Business Incubator and Louisiana Economic Devel-
opment. The show offers valuable tools and information designed to help New Orleans’ small
business owners take their business to the next level as well as assisting those individuals wish-
ing to start a business. The show provides resources and information essential to small business-
es. The show airs every Thursday 2:30-3 p.m. on WBOK 1230 AM Radio. Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu,
Director of SBDMI is the host, co-host is Mr. Dorian Nunez.




College of Business continued

e Meeting with LED & SCORE; August 6%; Met with representatives from both organizations to
discuss collaboration between SBDMI, Incubator and SCORE to do Monthly seminars for clients
from both organizations;

s Conference call meeting with representatives from District 2; Ms. Tiffany Crawtford, Executive
Director, Mr. Edward West, Director One Vision, One Voice; Ms. Diana Thomas & Ms. Cynthia
Beaulieu.

e Attended Trade Show; Sept. 11; Hispanic Chamber of Commerce; Ms. Diana Thomas & Ms, Cyn-
thia Beaulieu.

s Conference call; Aug. 14; Insurance Continuing Education (CE); Mr. Sherman Pittman, & Ms.
Cynthia Beaulieu. Submitted all applications and outlines for the 12 (CE) Classes that will be of-
fered by SUNO-SBDMI upon approval from the State of Louisiana Insurance Commission.

e Attended Black MBA Meeting; Aug, 11; Held at UNO to talk about the services of the SBDMI &
Small Business Incubator; 40 individuals present; Ms. Diana Thomas & Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu.

e New Business Workshop; Aug. 12; New Small Business Incubator Center, 10 a.m. & 6 p.m.; six
participants present; Ms. Diana Thomas (facilitator).

» Conference call with Douglas Melancon about SUNO-SBDMI Hospitably Project Aug. 14; Mr.
Douglas Melancon, Absolute Staffing Solutions, Diana Thomas & Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu. Waiting
on approval for on-line application to the Louisiana Workforce Commission (LWC) for Hospitali-
ty Curriculum so that individuals can register for the SUNO-SBDMI Hospitality Training
through Jobs One.

e Attended CBA Monthly Meeting; April 15, CBA Executive Conference Room; Dr. Udeh, Faculty,
Staff & Ms. Diana Thomas

® Meeting to discuss ordering Media Equipment for the Small Business Incubator Center, Aug. 15.;
Mr. Edward West, Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu (facilitators)

e NxleveL Orientation; Aug. 18; four participants present, seminar to register individual in the
NxLevel Entrepreneurial Training Class to develop their Business Plan.

» Meeting for SUNO BASH committee, Aug. 20. Met to plan this year's BASH at Sean Bruno’s Of-
fice on Elysian Fields; Committee & Cynthia Beaulieu.

» Notary Classes Begin Aug. 25 & 29; seven participants, the Small Business Incubator Center.
Class prepares participants to pass the Louisiana Notary Exam scheduled Dec. 5; Ms. Diana
Thomas, Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu and Ms. Suzan Jackson Esq, Attorney, Instructor.

¢ Attended CBA Monthly Meeting; Aug. 26; CBA Executive Conference Room; Dr. Udeh, Faculty,
Staff & Ms, Diana Thomas (facilitators).

» Meeting with LED-SCORE, Aug,. 27, met to discuss collaboration with SBDMI & SCORE; 10 par-
ticipants & Cynthia Beaulieu (facilitators).

* LED Advisory Committee Conference Call, Aug. 31, call to determine new guidelines for all State
Intermediaries; Committee & Cynthia Beaulieu (facilitators).

e Meeting to Develop SBDMI/Incubator Upcoming schedule of Seminars/ Workshops, ongoing;
Ms. Diana Thomas & Ms, Cynthia Beaulieu (facilitators).

s Met with three perspective rental clients at Small Business Incubator Center, ongoing; Ms. Diana
Thomas & Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu (facilitators).

s IWTP Program, ongoing; working on new IWTP Application and Letter to HR Directors in the
community; Ms, Corine Herman & Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu (facilitators).

¢ Small and Emerging Business Development (SEBD); ongoing; three Assessments; Ms. Cynthia
Beaulieu.




‘ College of Business continued

| e SEBD One-on One; (5); Call-in Clients; Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu & Ms. Diana Thomas (facilitators).
e Counseled incubator clients; Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu, Ms. Diana Thomas (facilitators).

OFFICE OF STUDENT SERVICES (055) AUGUST-SEPTEMBER 2015 REPORT
Mrs. Timotea Bailey, Director of the Office of Student Services reported the following activities:

e The Office of Student Services (0SS) led CBA in a bell ringing (10

rings to mark each year) and litany to commemorate the 10" anniversary

.of Hurricane Katrina and the progress SUNO/CBA has made.

» (OSS along with the CBA Dean, met with the Chancellor weekly to

%0 provide updates and discuss retention and graduation rate strategies re-

B |ated to the GRAD Act; 59% of 2014 CBA cohort members were retained.

e OSS provided advisement and registration support for new CBA stu-

— ~ dents during monthly University Orientation activities.

e (5SS represented CBA at first Veterans Administration Career Fair for VA employees.

¢ OS5 contacted each new CBA student individually by email, phone and/or visiting a class to per-
sonally invite them to the CBA New Student Orientation.

¢ The OSS hosted an orientation program for new CBA students. Students were introduced to CBA
leadership and faculty; empowered with information from the Center for Comprehensive Commu-
nication (tutoring), the Library, E-Learning, CBA and Student Activities. The CBA curriculum
sheets were reviewed and explained to ensure each student remains on-track. Personalized curricu-
lum sheets were prepared for each new student.

¢ The OSS prepared graduation application packets for 100 potential graduates (undergraduate and
graduate) for Fall 2015 and Spring 2016 and met with most of the candidates.

e The OSS revised the CBA advisee list my alphabet and provided an updated advisee list to each
CBA faculty member with cohort membership indicated.

e The OSS is proactively seeking to maximize graduation potential for 2010 cohort by closely moni-
toring and tracking their progress. The hope is that 18% will be reached.

e The 0SS worked to resolve registration/scheduling conflicts and registration issues particularly for
graduating seniors and 2010 Cohort.

e (OSS participated in the planning committee for the first CBA debate on the federal minimum wage,
scheduled in November.

e 0SS updated CISP and PADM brochures for informational and recruiting purposes.




College of Education & Human Development
Dr. Mwalimu Shujaa, Dean

ACCREDITATION
P Teacher Education
Dr. Willies Jones submitted Institutional Report (IR) Addendum in response to the Offsite BOE Report.

Dr. Jones has been gathering and analyzing data from the Teacher Education Department for SACS
standard 3.1.1.1 Academic Programs.

Dr, Louise Kaltenbaugh:

1. Prepared and submitted the NCATE Activities Agenda for the NCATE visit Oct. 25-27 to the Chair,
Dr. Willie Jones [T1

2, Contacted five former certification-only teachers and established date and times for them to be ob-
served by the NCATE Team

3. Sent memos to seven arts and sciences faculty requesting their attendance for the Monday evening
meeting with NCATE

4. Sent memos to top administrators requesting their availability to meet with the NCATE team mem-
bers on Monday, Oct. 25

5. Contacted key parish officials - Jefferson, Plaquemine, and St. Bernard - requesting their attendance
at the Monday evening meeting for NCATE.

6. Met with Dr. Lisa-Mims Devezin to review names for faculty invitations for the NCATE interview
sessions.

7. Met with Dr. Hegwood and Ms. Payne to review process for submitting their RTP portfolio.

Met with Dr. Tanisca Wilson to provide assistance with the Praxis workshops and with the upcoming
Title Il end of year report.

GRANT SUBMISSIONS

» Teacher Education

Dr. Kaltenbaugh is currently meeting with Dr. Cynthia Singleton. They are working on submitting a
NSF Robert Noyce Proposal, Track 1. This is a STEM grant proposal.

Dr. Jones and Dr. Jenita Hegwood submitted a grant proposal for the Believe and Prepare Educator
Preparation Grant for the amount of $200,000. The letter of intent was due Aug. 31. The four-page appli-
cation was due Sept. 18.

Ms, Celina Carson completed Final HMHB Program reports to Grantors. HMHB enrolled 150 students.
COE/HD candidates and faculty member instructed lessons in Math, Reading Literacy, Ago-ecology
Science, which included a vegetable garden project, Life-skills, and Physical Education.

Ms. Carson chaired weekly meetings with the 2015 Healthy Minds-Healthy Bodies Learning Institute
Committee in preparation for the next phase of the Program.

» Child Development and Family Studies
Dr. Diane Bordenave participated in multiple meetings in preparation for NCATE accreditation visit;




College of Education continued

including Sept. 1, 2 and 15. She also responded to multiple data requests in preparation for NCATE
accreditation visit.

WORKSHOPS, CONFERENCES AND SCHOLARLY ACTIVITIES

P Teacher Education

Dr. Kaltenbaugh submitted three Applications for Teaching Certificates for three Certification-Only
Candidates who completed the program.

Dr. Kaltenbaugh is conducting the 80-Hour Workshop on Saturdays from 1-5 p.m. and planned a
workshop for October with a group in Washington D.C.

Dr. Kaltenbaugh attended three faculty development meetings and two faculty committee meetings.

Dr. Kaltenbaugh met with Mr. Warren Bell, director of the Honoré Center to discuss upcoming
events, curriculum issues, and progression for Honoré students, She also met with two Honoré
students to review their program of study and assist in planning for their spring registration.

Dr. Kaltenbaugh teaches three classes - EDSN 350 - Reading in the Content Area, ELED 226 - Con-
tent Knowledge for Elementary Praxis exam, and ELED 498 -Internship I for Elementary Teachers.
She also is the director of the Certification-Only Program. She meets with two students who are do-
ing independent study with her every Thursday evening after her 7:15 to 8:30 class and every Satur-
day from 11 a.m. until noon.

Dr. Kaltenbaugh met with four interns, conducted pre-conferences, completed four classroom ob-
servations, and conducted four post-conferences,

Dr. Jones was invited to attend Tougaloo College’s SACS accreditation visit to give feedback regard-
ing its newly approved Master of Arts in Teaching and Master of Arts in Child Development degree

programs, The meeting was Sept. 16.

P Child Development and Family Studies
Dr. Bordenave attended the Raising of America screening presented by Healthy Start of New Orle-
ans at Delgado Community College on Sept. 22,

Dr. Bordenave participated in a conference-call training conducted by BoR/LDOE about ETS re-
porting Sept. 22.

Dr. Bordenave completed HDFS masters course descriptions for HDFS 503 (Quantitative and Statis-
tical Application in HDFS) and HDFS 601 (Children, Youth, and Adults with Special Needs) Sept.
25.

Reviewed four manuscripts for publication in American Research Journals Sept. 24.

Ms. Carson enrolled and participated in three courses in alignment with the Program of Study for
her doctoral degree at Southern University and A&M College, College of Science and Agriculture.




Education & Human Development continued

the 2015 Survey of Doctorate Recipients (SDR) for the National Science Foundation on Sept. 21.

P ALTERNATIVE CERTIFICATION

Dr. Kaltenbaugh responded to nine e-mails for Certification-Only Inquirers, provided information re-
garding program via e-mail.

Dr. Kaltenbaugh responded to 17 telephone calls for Certification-Only Inquirers and provided infor-
mation over the telephone.

Dr. Kaltenbaugh met and interviewed 11 potential Certification-Only candidates to enter the program
for spring, 2016.

Dr. Kaltenbaugh updated the Overview Sheet as to Requirements regarding entering the program and
Praxis tests.

Dr. Kaltenbaugh responded to four former certification only candidates regarding the following: (1) Up-
dated letter for Practitioner License; (2) Two transcript assessment s to determine course requirements
for add-ons to certification - one in English and one in Social Studies; and Letter of Recommendation for
an Early Childhood Teaching Position.

OTHER UNIVERSITY-RELATED ACTIVITIES

Dr. Mwalimu J. Shujaa in collaboration with his daughter, Kenya . Shujaa, completed the general editor-
ship of The SAGE Encyclopedia of African Cultural Heritage in North America. The encyclopedia, which
contains 350 signed entries, provides an accessible ready-reference on the retention and continuity of Af-
rican culture within the United States and North America. The official publication date is July 2015.

The encyclopedia’s conceptual framework holds, first, that culture is a form of self-knowledge and
knowledge about self in the world as transmitted from one person to another. Second, that African peo-
ple continuously create their own cultural history as they move through time and space. Third, that Afri-
can descended people living outside of Africa also are contributors to and participate in the creation of
African cultural history.

The encyclopedia includes the work of authors who reflect a cross-section of the Southern University
System. Dr. Romanus Ejiaga, for instance, contributed four articles, including one in which he presented
an explanation the African world view concept. Dr. Ejiaga’s other contributions focus on Africanisms
identifiable in African American names; the continuing evolution of aesthetics in African dance in North
America; and the World Festival of Black Arts and Culture.

Dr. Peter Breaux (SUBR) explains how the Louisiana Creole language was created by Africans brought
directly from the Senegambia region between 1719 and 1731. Dr. Owusu Bandele (SUAGC) authored
two agriculture-related entries that inform readers about the introduction of African foods, both indige-
nous and nonindigenous, to the Americas and the wealth of agricultural knowledge that enslaved Afri-
cans brought to North America.




School of Social Work

Dr. Ronald Mancoske, Interim Dean

P Bonnie Alston, Director of Field Education.

On Sept. 21, the Field Education Unit Sponsored an In-service Training/Workshop for current BSW
and MSW Field Supervisors titled, “Measuring Student Success in Field Placement: Strategies, Instru-
ments and Conversations.” The Field Unit with Clause Montegut also sponsored a session titled, “The
Integrative Learning Plan.”

These workshops provided an interactive process for supervisors to gain knowledge and skills in meas-
uring supervisee success in current practices. Faculty members also attended the session (Dr. Yazeed,
Mr. Blanchard, Mr. Montegut, and Dr. Ira A. Neighbors).

P Dr. Carey Yazeed

Selected as a workshop presenter for the National Association of Black Social Workers 2016 annual con-
ference, topica; “Who's That Girl: Women, Trauma and Success.” Dr. Yazeed presented a workshop
(Sept. 13) to the Baton Rouge Chapter of Top Teens of America titled “Respect and Social Media.”

> Mr, Edgar Blanchard

Conducted a meeting of the “Men of Social Work.” The group elected officers as well as set a calendar
of activities for this semester. The group scheduled a Business of Fashion Seminar titled, “Where
Fashion Meets Business.” It also initiated a “Neck Tie and Dress Shirt” drive.

P Claude Montegut

Facilitated the Sept. 21 Field Education Unit's Field Supervisors workshop. The workshop was present-
ed to 75 credentialed social work professionals representing a mixture of 54 mental health, social ser-
vices and other human services organizations/agencies within a 100-mile radius of the campus. The
workshop afforded these professionals and SUNO Alumni an opportunity to network and visit the
campus.

P Dr. Ira A. Neighbors

Spoke at Tulane University School of Social Work inauguration of the first New Orleans Association of
Black Social Worker's (NOABSW) student chapter. He also presented at the BSW Seminar for Majors
workshop.

P Dr. Derrick Freeman

Participated in a “Male Involvement Seminar” for male students and guardians at Mary Bethune Ele-
mentary School in New Orleans. The goal was to support parent involvement and PTA relevance for
males connecting children’s success in school and in life and share with male students and men the
benefits of family engagement. Dr. Freeman attended the full-day training with louisianachildren.org
titled, “Child Welfare Law Advanced Institute Multi-Disciplinary Training: The “Red Book.” Specialist
in child welfare law presented on child welfare law and practice on skills in representing children, par-
ents and state agencies in abuse, neglect and custody proceedings.

» Dr. Jill E. Murray

Secured a donation for ten $40 tickets for students to attend the annual fundraiser for Hagar's House, a
nonprofit organization that provides transitional housing for women and their children. Dr. Murray




Social Work continued

also secured $700 from outside the SUNO community for Social Work students to participate in the
Gentilly Fest Bike Easy Bicycle Second-Line in October at Pontchartrain Park. The Bicycle Second-
Line seeks to create a stronger community in the Gentilly area. Dr. Murray took students on a field
trip to the "Purchased Live" exhibit at the Historic New Orleans Collection where they examined the
role of slavery in the development of City of New Orleans. The exhibit included original documents
and artifacts from the slave trade in New Orleans.

» Dr. Rebecca Chaisson

Presented “Women as Knowledge Architects: Indigenous Philanthropy in Ogutu and New Orleans”
at the Law and Society Conference in Seattle, Wash. She presented a seminar on “Cultural Compe-
tency/Cultural Relevancy” for Drug Court Staff. Dr. Chaisson moderated the Katrina @ 10 program
where she facilitated the development of digital stories of MSW students. The stories will be devel-
oped into a single DVD for showing at another time during the semester (students are: Tia Jackson,
Tara Jones, Anthony Batiste, & Janae Thomas). Drs. Rebecca Chaisson, Harry Russell, Ben Robertson
and Lyndia Green-Faust, Esquire will present a workshop “Forensic Social Work: Dismantling an
Unjust Justice System” at the National Association of Black Social Workers Conference in New
Orleans March 24, of 2016.

P Dr. Harry Russell

Chaired the faculty search committee that recommended the selection of new faculty in the School of
Social Work. He also chaired the DSW Committee, which has reviewed start-up activities and appli-
cant intake information packet, applications, general program information, course syllabi.

Dr. Russell chairs the outcome committee addressing program outcome measures, institutional effec-
tiveness, livetext, and CSWE accreditation. Dr. Russell (along with Dr. Mancoske and Ms. Alston)
participated in planning for the PROJECT 1 Juvenile Court Program to help negotiate and coordinate
field placements and potential research project for both students and faculty. As a result, Juvenile
court has become a field placement site for six of our students.

P Dr. Ronald ). Mancoske
Conducted an accreditation site visit for the BSW Program Texas Southern University.



¥ IB bF i

% s 2 |
]

Agricultural Research & Extension Center

Adell Brown, Jr,

Interem Chanerllos

120 T of Prarsaling Arcsi
and it g D et

Gina E. Fubanks

Vicg Chaneaflor far Fxiesaion

Linda Batiste
CHANCELLOR’S REPORT

(hrucine ol mance

Dr. Adell Brown, Jr.

Christopher Rogors
Dirns ol Tochnalagy Yermors

Editors
Bridget Uldaokh
C. Badon
LaKoeshin Giddens Lusk

Presented to:

A, O. Willnms Hall
Board of Supervisors

PO, Box 10070

Southern University and A & M College System Webaite: =

Southern University
vgricultural Honerrch and
Extension Center, an entity of
the Southern Universit
hidiell Brown, Jr
Chaneellor: Ray Belt

President: La

In

vty H
Chairman, Board of S

It jn iesued in further
Cooperative Extension Work Act

of December 1971, and the

Agriouliural Research Program

in eooper; with the 1.5
Depirtmer
oducaLon

griculture, All
programa conductod
the Southern University

Agricultural Hesen

b and
1".:\"|'.'1r.:|I |

“anter are pro |
ne regurdless of race

national origin, or disability

tor all pars

2008 81 Ag Centor

Linking Citizens of Louisiana with Cpposlunitics fox Succeas

R e
November 2015 Page 1

Number 243-103




Southern University Ag Center’s Fast Track Program Acknowledged for Innovation at
Nation Extension Directors and Administrators (NEDA) Conference

As the result of a highly competitive
process, the Southern University
Agricultural Research and Extension
Center's (SUAREC) Fast Track
Gardening Program was selected from
a field of 151 entries reported to a
research team at Ohio State University.
The research project is an ECOP
project to develop a Cooperative
Extension Innovation Inventory. That
mventory was the basis for the 2015
NEDA meeting and was designed to

maintained by the school’s
students, We have also initiated a
gardening program at the Bridge
City Center for Youth in New
Orleans, Louisiana. Several of the
Juveniles from JCY were
transferred there, and provide
leadership in the project.

Future plans include formalizing a
memorandum of understanding
with horticultural-related

show how Cooperative Extension is
positioned for excellence in its second
100 years.

The SUAREC provides agricultural
training to incarcerated and

Standing from left, SUAREC
Extension Associate Stephanie
Elwood and Vice Chancellor for '
Extension Dr. Gina Eubanks pose for | 1he program will also endeavor

a photo during the NEDA
Conference in St. Louis, MO,

establishments to allow the
program’s graduates to obtain
work opportunities upon release.

to establish internship/work
release opportunities for selected

adjudicated youth. Training topics
include communication and life skills, as well as
horticultural and work force skills. Instruction
involves both classroom and hands-on activities
including the establishment of horticultural garden
plots. Instructors utilize a community gardening
curriculum that was developed by the SUAREC,
Certificates are awarded upon successful
completion of the program; they can be utilized to
support applications at any horticultural-related
establishment and for judge presentation at court to
display program participation and compliance.

This program has been implemented at three
facilities. Jetson Center for Youth (JCY) was the
pilot program that began in May, 2011 until the
closure of the facility in January, 2014. Gardening
classes were conducted twice a week. In response
to Jetson’s abrupt closure, the program was
established at THRIVE of Baton Rouge, a public
charter boarding school that serves adjudicated
students. Weekly classes at THRIVE began in
May, 2014 and presently continue. A garden at
THRIVE was established and 1s currently

trustworthy youth to afford
work-related opportunities even while they are
incarcerated.

On October 12-14, 2015, Extension Associate,
Stephanie Elwood and Vice Chancellor of
Extension, Dr. Gina E. Eubanks traveled to St.
Louis, MO to represent the SUAREC's Fast Track
team at the NEDA Conference. The program began
in 2011 with the initial leadership of Christie
Monroe. The team consists of Stephanie Elwood,
Kelli Hollins, Mila Berhane, Dr, Owusu Bandele,
Yemane Ghebreiyessus, and Dr. Kasundra Cyrus.

Elwood and the Office of Technology &
Communications at the SUAREC also participated
in a Twitter Town Hall during the NEDA
Conference. The Fast Track Gardening Program
was one of four topics selected to be featured during
the town hall.

The SUAREC will also host a Twitter Town Hall
on December 3 from 2 p.m. — 3 p.m. (CST).

November 2015

Page 2 Number 243-103



Hammond High Magnet School Pro Start Program

Hammond High Magnet School (H.H.M.S.) Pro The youth harvested Georgia Collards, Redlight
Start Program’s Culinary Arts students: Kyarah Swiss Shard, Buttercrunch Lettuce, Pak Choi, Red
Golden, Kayleigh Kemer, Jayilen Handy, L.J. Sails Lettuce, Bell Peppers and Shallots. Cool
McKinley, Rayne Raleigh, season herbs included: Chives,

Derrick Jackson, Madison Fisher,
and Kenneth Collins prepared
fresh local grown vegetables,

Cilantro, Dill, Fennel, Parsley, and
Chervil were added to the herb
garden.

salad, and shrimp pasta on W ‘

October 27 at the school. @ The Garden to Culinary Arts

Hopefully the youth can Kitchen program is an opportunity

appreciate the importance of for H.H.M.S. Pro start students to

locally grown food they grow fresh fruits and vegetables in

produced in September from their school Mms with the goal of

seeds and transplants. Youth can :ruppl}rit.l.g their harvest to the

enjoy delicious garden-based SU Ag Center Extension Agent Ahmad | cafeteria to be used at lunch
Robertson, Hammond High Magnet service.

treats in the classroom and leamn Bokoot Pre Btast Progiso: Culiniry

about the importance of including Aris Students and teacher Mrs. Drago Teacher Mrs. Drago has built a
veggies on their plates. display a harvest from the school’s professional kitchen in a cozy,

oo friendly and comfortable

Tangi Pro Start students learned

to plant, nurture and harvest vegetables from their atmosphere to share her passion for cooking with
own raised beds. Youth also learned about the students.

nutritional choices and choosing a healthy lifestyle For more information on the H.H. M.S. Pro Start
through diet and physical activity. Gardening ties Program, contact the Ahmad Robertson at the St.
into therapeutic exercises, earth, science, and math. Helena or Tangipahoa Extension Service, 305 E
The youth made the transition from school to farm Oak St., Amite, by calling (985) 748-5462, (225)
when they took produce home to their families and 222-4136, or email

shared with their high school faculty staff. ahmad_robertson@suagcenter.com

The Southwest Center for Rural Initiatives Helps Youth Participate in 4-H
National Youth Science Day

The Southwest Center for Rural Initiatives (SCRI) cars, calculators and cell phones to show how
sponsored 4-H National Youth Science Day physics principles influence a pressing problem
(NYSD) events for over 600 students during the among U.S. teens. This year’s experiment was titled
month of October. Youth in St. Landry, ‘Motion Commotion.”

Beauregard, and Acadia Parishes joined youth
across the world in the eighth annual 4-H National
Youth Science Day Experiment, which combined

November 2015 Page 3 Number 243-103

Students from Northeast Elementary School in St.
Landry Parish; Singer Elementary, East Beauregard




Elementary, and Merryville High School in
Beauregard Parish, and Church
Point Middle School in Acadia
Parish, participated in the events.

Students conducted the two-part
‘Motion Commotion’ experiment
using every day materials —
including a toy car, modeling clay,

a ruler, calculator and a cell phone

them to the world of science in a fun
and interactive way,” added
Washington.

In addition to the experiment,
Washington also adds a public speaking
portion at the summation of the project.
A student has to use scientific terms to
adequately explain what took place

— to explore physics in the real-
world.

In the first phase of the
experiment, youth constructed a

Top, Krystle Washington
prepares students for the first
phase of the *Motion
Commotion' Experiment.
Bottom, students conduct
experiment.

throughout the experiment to their
peers.

4-H NYSD is the world’s largest,
youth-led science experiment. The
national day is dedicated to engaging

simulated runway to analyze the
speed, momentum and kinetic energy of a car in
motion, and explored the science behind the car’s
collisions. In the second phase, they led an
experiment that uses the same physics principles to
demonstrate the consequences of distracted driving,

“Providing youth in rural areas with an interactive
and engaging science experiment is always a joy;
however, it's imperative to also provide the students
with a lesson they will need and utilize for a
lifetime,” said Dr. Wanda Burke, Director of SCRIL

“4-H has aimed to teach students science for over a
century, it is important that students in the 10-
parish rural areas that the SCRI covers have the
same access to STEM activities,” said Krystle
Washington, Science Day Event Orgamizer. “When
going into these communities, we [Goldie Jordan
and William Augustine] are looking at future
scientist, engineers, physicist, etc. and it's amazing
to see the excitement on their faces as we expose

kids with science through a hands-on,
interactive leaming experience that gets youth
excited about science, technology, engineering and
mathematics (STEM).

The SCRI is a satellite campus of the Southern
University Ag Center located in Opelousas. During
the upcoming weeks, the Center will bring the 4-H
National Youth Science Day experience to the
remainder of its 10 parish region.

Television coverage of the event held at Northeast
Elementary School aired on KATC 3 on October
15, 2015. The Daily World Newspaper carried the
event under its* campus news section on October
2.

To view the video, click the following link,

http://www katc.com/clip/1 19271 1 6/national-4-h-
day-celebrated-at-northeast-elementary

SCRI Partners with STL Proud

Extension Educator Krystle J. Washington has
joined the St. Landry Preventing Rx Overuse and
Underage Drinking (STL PROUD) Coalition.

The organization, formerly known as the St.
Landry Parish Children & Youth Services Planning
Board, includes approximately 20 non-profit
organizations, state agencies, local municipal

e — e ——— el

November 2015

Page 4 Number 243-103




governments, and businesses which service the
needs of children and youth in St. Landry Parish.
STL PROUD targets the 12-25 age group.

“While representing the Southwest Center
by serving on the St. Landry Parish
Children & Youth Services Planning
Board; | have been afforded the
opportunity to work closely and become

a part of the STL. PROUD coalition. It is
imperative that individuals within St.
Landry Parish who participate in
underage drinking and

Services Planning Board has branded itself as the
STL PROUD Coalition. In highlighting the
acronym STL PROUD, the intent is to bring
positive presence in addressing the ills of underage
drinking and prescription drug misuse/abuse.

Rather than the messaging of “don’t do
this™ and “stop doing that,” the STL
PROUD Coalition seeks to build a sense of
pride among the targeted age populations
to be addressed and hopefully, seeing a
sense of pride will permeate the whole
parish, while addressing the issues of

prescription abuse have access to
STL PROUD so we can build and
develop stronger communities. It

Krystle Washington addresses the underage drinking and prescription
STL PROUD Coalition during a

recent meeting.

drug misuse/abuse. There is the belief
that ‘The Power of Change’ is at work

is truly an honor to serve on the STL PROUD
coalition to actively and positively impact the
community,” said Krystle Washington.

St. Landry Parish has been selected by the
Louisiana Partnerships for Success as one of 10
high need parishes in the state to address the
priorities of underage drinking, prescription drug
misuse/abuse, and depression. In addressing these
priorities, the St. Landry Parish Children & Youth

in the parish. We are “One parish pulling together
to change our future!™

For more information on STL PROUD, please visit
their website, at hitp://www.stiproudcoalition.com/.

For more information on how you can be involved,
give suggestion, or questions/ concerns; contact
Krystle J. Washington at

Krystle Washington(@suagcenter.com.

SU Ag Center Teams Up With LSU AgCenter to Conduct Honey Bee

More than 30 current and
budding honey bee enthusiasts
from diverse Louisiana parishes
convened at the Breaux Bridge
Extension Office on October 16
to learn about the challenges
and opportunities in honey bee-

keeping.

seed treatment and diseases. Sebe
Brown, LSU area agent taught, about
pollinator protection. Following the
presentation, participants traveled to
Bernard's Apiaries for a bee yard live
demonstration and honey facility
operation tour led by the facility’s

The goal of the training was to
mitigate against recent bee loss

Steven Bernard, owner, shows and tells owner, Steven Bernard.
about his honey bee business

Some suggested solutions included

in the state. The discussions centered on colony
collapse disorder, mites, pesticides, management,

seed treatment with neonicotinoids
and effective communication with

November 2015

Page 5 Number 243-103




all partners involved in spraying cultivated fields
with chemicals that may impact the lives of bees.

All trainees received resource information on bees,
wasps, and other stinging creatures,

The training was coordinated by DeLane Ross, SU
Ag Center extension agent, St. Martin and Iberia
Parishes, and sponsored by LSU AgCenter and
Sustainable Agriculture Research & Education
(SARE).

NIFA Recognizes Outstanding Contributions on Annual Day of
Appreciation

WASHINGTON, Oect. 22, 2015 — The U.S.
Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) National
Institute of Food and Agriculture (NIFA)
announced NIFA Partnership Award recipients and
Hall of Fame inductees, honoring those whose
exemplary work has helped the agency fulfill its
mission of investing in and advancing agricultural
research, education, and extension.

“We place high value on the teams of researchers
and other individuals who have enacted positive
change on the future of agriculture and science
through their work,” said Sonny Ramaswamy,
NIFA Director. “They, and dedicated NIFA
employees, have made contributions to this agency
and its mission that will have long-standing impacts
on the work we do to help address our nation's most
pressing challenges.”

Three categories of the 2015 NIFA Partnership
Awards were presented to the lead institution of
grantee projects that have created outstanding
impacts:

. Mission Integration of Research, Education,
and Extension, awarding teams that work across all
three of NIFA's mission areas to produce positive
outcomes in agriculture, the environment,
communities, or people.

The Useful to Usable Team from Purdue University
improved the usability of climate information to
guide agricultural production in the Midwestern

United States Com Belt. This team of biophysical
and social scientists produced climate-based
decision support tools to assist cereal crop farmers
and agricultural advisors throughout their
purchasing, marketing, and activity planning. These
tools are free and publicly available at
AgClimate4U. org(link is external).

. Multistate Efforts, granted to awardees
whose projects are responding to critical needs
important to gach project leader’s state.

The Stronger Economies Together (SET) Initiative,
a project run cooperatively between USDA Rural
Development and Mississippi State University, aims
to help rural counties overcome the economic
challenges that they face. SET guides collaborations
within multi-county regions, helping them to
develop regional economic plans based on self-
assessments of strengths and assets. Over 1,500
organizations across 54 regions m 30 states are
currently engaged in plans to address needs and
strengthen assets such as rural healthcare,
agritourism, and entrepreneurism.

Innovative Programs and Projects, awarding teams
that use a unique combination of resources and
disciplines to enact positive outcomes in response to
important regional or national issues.

The Bayou Recyclers program from Southern
University and A&M College works to convert
trash to treasure using aquaculture waste (AW),

November 2015

Page 6 Number 243-103



such as sheilfish parts, and burnt corn gluten meal, a
com byproduct intended for use as fertlizer, but
inadvertently burnt during transport. The team hes
developed ways of tuming what has been a major
Louisiana waste problem into low cost feed and
fertilizer, for cxample, by solar drying AW and
develeping methods fer increasing its crude protein
content.

Additionally, [our individuals were inducted inio
the NIFA Hall of Fame to recognize Lheir
conlributions to Lhe agency's mission:

. Dr. Meryl Broussard, NIFA Associate
Director for Programs, was honored for his
character and commitment to excellence in
upholding NIFA's mission throughout his more
than 3Q years of service at the agency and its
predecessors. Dr. Broussard provided agency-wide
ieadership throughout the planning and
establishment of NIFA as mandated under the 2008
Farm Bill and served as the agency’s [irst full-time
National Program Leader in aquaculture, launching
many of the [irst research and extension aquaculture

programs.

. Mr. Delbent Foster, South Careling State
University Executive Director of 1890 Research and
Extension, was recognized for his lcadership and
conlributiens to land-grant universitics. He has
served as 4 liaison between 1890 land-grant
university proprams at S5C State and NIFA,
Clemson University, and the Budget and Conirol
Board of South Carolina. Additionally, Mr, Foster 15
a member of the 4-H National Board of Directors
and chairs the Extension Committee on
Organization and Policy of the Associanon of
Public Land-grant Universines (APLU).

. Dr. Ralph Otio, former NIFA Deputy
Director for Food and Community Resources, was
honored for his 37 years of federal service, 24 of
which were with NIFA and its predecessor
agencies. Before joining the Exlension Service in
1990, Dr. Otto worked in the USDA s Office of
International Cooperation and Development as a
program lcader for the Technical Assistance
Division — Asia and Middle East — and as direclor
of the Intemational Traiming Division,

. Dr. Steven Slack, Ohio State Tniversity
(CSU) Associate Vice President for Agnicultural
Administration and Director of the Ohip
Agricultural Research and Development Center,
was recognized for advancing agriculwral research
and extensicn throughout his more than 40 years of
faculty and administrative service. Prior to serving
as an adminisirator at QSLJ, Dr. Slack was an
accomplished plant pathologist at the University of
Wisconsin and Comell University. He has also
provided leadership to several boards of the APL,
is & fellow and past president of the Amencan
Phytepathologmical Society, and is a fellow elected
into the American Academy for the Advancement
of Science.

NTFA 1nvests in and advances agricultural research,
education, and extension and seeks to make
trunsformative discoveries that solve socielal
challenges. To learn more about NIFA's impact on
agricultural science, visit nifa. usda.pov/impacts or
follow us on Twitter {Zusda nifa(link is external),
#NIFAimpacts(link is extcrnal).

November 2015

Page 7 Number 243-103



SU Ag Center Helps Rural Citizens Improve Economic & Community

Development
On October 30, from the Stronger Economics Together (5.E.T.)
USDA Rural group working to improve economic and
Development community development initiatives in the southeast
State Director region comprised of four parishes - East Feliciana,
for Louisiana St. Helena, Tangipahoa and Washington.
Mr. Clearance ‘
Hawkins, his The focus and assessment of the LACES gathering
was to display a regional snapshot of the area’s
SHEnding frame it ave 51/ Ag assistant Mr. demography, human capital, labor force, industry

Center employees Gloria London,
Nicolette Gordon, Eual Hall,
Frankie Poland, SU Dean of the
College of Business Dr. Donald
Andrews, Ahmad Roberson,
Tiffany Franklin, Ellen McKnight
and Linda E. Brown,

Lee Jones, and
other members
of his agency
came to observe
and strengthen
efforts of the
Louisiana Alliance Cultivating Economic Success
(LACES) Civic Forum meeting in Amite, LA. The
Southern University Agriculture Research and
Extension staff assisted more than 75 members

and occupation. The purpose of the snapshot is
mtended to inform the region’s leaders,
organizations and residents of the key atiributes of
the region’s population and economy. The idea is to
utilize the stock of the region’s important assets and
investments to soften the resistance of challenges
faced and use data in hand, regional leaders and
organizations in a better position to invest in the
mix of strategies that will foster the growth of the
economy and farther provide a higher quality of life
for residents of the region.

SU Ag Center & AHF Honors Outstanding Mature Girlz Club Honor Roll

The Southern University Agricultural Research &
Extension Center (SUAREC), and the AIDS
Healthcare Foundation (AHF) are working
together to incentivize Outstanding Mature
Girlz (O.M.G.) Club members that
maintained an 3.5 — 4.0 grade point average
for the first six weeks of the academic
school year.

On Friday, October 9, 2015 — fifteen
O.M.G. club members traveled to AMC
Theatre at the Mall of Louisiana to see,

“He Named Me Malala.” This documentary

looks at the events that led to a vicious attack by the
Taliban on Malala Yousafzaia, a young women's
rights activist in Pakistan.
“Not only are we rewarding young ladies for
their academic excellence, but hopefully this
movie will spark insight to make social changes
in their communities,” said Nicolette Gordon,
Assistant Area Agent, SU Ag Center. “I want
them to see the great lengths that young
courageous women have endured for
something we often take for granted.”

The O M.G. Club meets every second Wednesday
al Kentwood High Magnet School under the

November 2015

Page 8

Number 243-103




leadership of Nicolette Gordon. For more nicolette_gordon(@suageenter.com or in the
information on how you can be involved, contact Tangipahoa Parish Extension Office at
Nicolette via email at 985.748.9381.

Twenty Louisiana Students Traveled to Mississippi to Rally & March over
State Flag

Students from Kentwood High Magnet School and Carolina State Representative Jenny Horne, Rapper
St. Helena College & Career il | & Former Southern University SGA
Academy, along with Southern -i President David Banner, and Civil rights
University Ag Center’s Assistant activist Myrlie Evers-Williams, to show
Area Agent Nicolette Gordon, support of Initiative 55, which calls for the
Youth Coordinator Toni Melton, removal of the Confederate battle emblem
and St. Helena College & Career

Academy’s Civics teacher SeandingRaws 4ok are, Somth from the State of Mississippi’s Flag.

koo MO 00| ot e e .| The march began at the inrsection of
— ; . £ S J.R. Lynch and Rose Street and ended at

October 11 to participate in the Williams, Former SU SGA :

One Flag for All Mississippians | Fresident & Rapper David Banner tht.’ SEEP_E = the sourh _mde aprhe

March and Rally and Sharron Brown. Mississippi State Capitol, where the rally

lasted from 3:40 p.m. to 5 p.m.

The 20 students were engaged during their Civics
classes on the importance of letting their voices be
heard, and the many ways they can get involved to
do so. This sparked their interest in participating in
the history making event,

“We shouldn’t have a flag that represents a bad time
in our history,” says Sharron Brown, who proposed
Initiative 55. Brown is also starting to collect
signatures for the initiative, and she’s hoping to see
it on the state’s ballot in 2018.

The march and rally were organized by local leaders
across the United States and was led by South

SU System President Honored

Southern University System Board of reception honoring SU System President/
Supervisors members Raymond Fondel and Chancellor Dr. Ray Belton on October 12,
Rev. Samuel Tolbert, Jr. along with SU Ag 2015 at Greater St. Mary Missionary
Center Assistant Area Agent for Calcasieu and Baptist Church in Lake Charles, Louisiana.
Jefferson Parishes Carol Sensley participated
and attended a networking luncheon and

From left are, SU System Board of Supervisors
members Raymond Fondel, SU Ag Center
Exiension Agent Carol Sensley, SU System
President/ Chancellor Dr. Ray Belton and SU Board
of Supervisors member Rev. Samuel Tolbert.

November 2015 Page 9 Number 243-103

I ———



St. Helena Arts & Technology Academy School Garden

On October 5, 2015 the St. Helena Aris &
Technology Academy (S.H.A.T.A.) revealed its
model demonstration school garden. SU Ag Center
Area Agents for St. Helena & Tanglpahna Panshes
Ahmad R. Robertson, Sr. and -
Nicolette Gordon; Louisiana Master
Gardeners Roger Olsen, Carol KIiff,
and Quincy Walker; USDA NRCS
Brandon Bates, and Samuel Terry
demonstrated best management
practices for a winter garden.

The St. Helena College & Career
Academy Junior Master Gardeners

and the three states of matter (solid, liquid, and gas).
The students explored life science, earth science,
and physical science.

. The primary purpose of the garden is to
showcase flowering plants, and vegetables that
perform well in our climate and soils with
minimal maintenance. Demonstration gardens
showcase plants and sustainable gardening
techniques appropriate to local areas and
provide learning opportunities for home
gardeners, landscape planting and maintenance
procedures.

The gardens include annual display beds

and 4-H Club members William
Lloyd, Jermil Myles, Regina

Students learn about plant
spacing.

of Louisiana recommended plant
varieties. Cool season vegetables such

Hughes, JQualene Singleton,
Sam Banks, Scott Galmon, Savannah Fisher,
Charleston Topps, Tridarian Dehon, Jamarcus
Morris, Caranisha Franklin, Jewellisha Muse, Shern
Martin, Tyrell Ricard, Kyla Bryant, Teanna Lee,
Abrieanna Brumfield, and Quajane Ross; along
with Outstanding Mature Girlz Club members
Brianna Banks, Kevelyn Brown, Chritearra
Brumfield, Symone Bryer, Diamond Burton, Chhya
Frazier, Jacoda Green, Ashifa Jackson, and Anel
Scott supervised the S.H.A.T.A. Fifth grade
students.

Mr. Terry Guy, Agricultural teacher at St. Helena
College & Career Academy is doing an outstanding
job in preparing future agriculture leaders with
Supervised Agriculture Experience Programs. St.
Helena Arts & Technology Fifth grade teachers
Mrs. Rosetta Gamner, Mrs. Shevonda Williams, and
Mrs. Crystal Jones provided students with hands-on
training on plant spacing, location, transplanting,
irrigation, mulching and the cultivating of fifteen
vegetable plots. S.H.A.T.A science students get an
introduction to sound, electricity, plants, animals,

as: Georga collards, Packman F1 Broccoli, Ruby
Perfection F1 Cabbage, Early Platinum Dynasty
Lettuce, Buttercrunch, Paris Island Romaine &
Arugula, Kale Toscano, Cauliflower Snow Crown
F1, Mustard Red Giant & Florida Broadleaf, and
Swiss Chard Bright Lights will be displayed in the
raised beds. Cool season herbs: Chives, Cilantro,
Dill, Parsley, and Chervil will highlight the herb
garden. The entrance arbor tunnel will display
Louisiana Super Plants, Snap Dragons, and Amazon
Dianthus. Planting ideas for homeowners will be
plentiful at the demonstration garden; it will include
plants that are attractive, affordable, and readily
available. These plants can easily be incorporated
into home landscapes.

School gardens are a wonderful way to use the
schoolyard as a classroom, reconnect students with
the natural world and the true source of their food.
It also teaches students valuable gardening and
agriculture concepts and skills that integrate with
several subjects, such as math, science, art, health
and physical education, and social studies, as well

November 2015

Page 10

Number 243-103



as several educational goals, including personal and
social responsibility.

“The St. Helena Parish School District is very
pleased to have Ahmad R. Robertson Sr. and all his
colleagues provide engaging, hands-on educational
experiences for our students that connect to the real
world,” said Dr. Kelli Joseph, Superintendent of St.
Helena Parish Public Schools.

Are you looking to volunteer in a school garden?
Whether you are interested in a one time
commitment or are looking for an ongoing
volunteer opportunity. S.H.A.T.A. youth need your
help. Our greatest volunteer need is for support with
our education programs, and leading gardening
activities with small groups of students. The
students will perform garden maintenance from
9:30 a.m., to 11:30 a.m., Monday thru Friday.

Orleans Parish holds 4-H Program

National 4-H week was held on
October 4th- October 10th. St.
Peter Claver's 4-H club meeting
was facilitated by Assistant
Extension Youth Development
Agent Krystal Sugulleh Stewart
along with the club’s volunteer

peers. Youth officer leaders for St. Peter
Claver’s 5th, 6th and 7th grade Science
classes were elected. The club members
concluded their 4-H club meeting by
creating a 4-H poster that states what 4-H
Grows in Orleans Parish. As displayed on
the poster, 4-H grows friendships, minds,

leader. 4-H youth club members
participated in elections of officer

4-H Club Members

kindness, diversity, helping hands, service
and leaders. Youth 4-H club members

leader positions. Youth practiced
and enhanced their public speaking skills by
presenting their election speeches in front of their

posed for a photo with the National 4-H
Week Slogan #4-H Grows Here in Orleans Parish.

SU Ag Center Partners with Two Local Nursing Homes to Spread Holiday

Not everyone who lives in a retirement community
gets visitors, and the Southern University Ag Center
has teamed up with the St. Helena Parish Nursing
Home & Kentwood Manor to help bridge that gap.
"Adopt-a-GP,” which 1s a short acronym for Grand
Parent, is a community service project used to pair a
teenager in the community, with one elderly person.
Teens will visit and spend time with them during
the holiday season playing games, dancing, creating
crafts, and hanging holiday décor.

"I'm very excited about the partnership," said
Nicolette Gordon, SU Ag Center's, Assistant Area

Agent. “Grand-parents are the fabric of wisdom,
and this type of volunteer opportunity can definitely
be more rewarding primarily because of its mutual
benefits.”

Students participating in the Jag Leader, and
0O.M.G, Club organizations in Tangipahoa & St.
Helena Parishes attended a training on November

I 1th & 12th during their regular club meetings time
to discuss, “Working with the Elderly.”

For more information on how you can pariner to
enhance our Adopt-a-GP! Community Service

November 2015

Page 11

Number 243-103



Project, contact Nicolette Gordon in the Tangipahoa
Parish Extension Office 985.748.9381, or St.

Helena Parish Extension Office 225.222.4136.

SU student Sally Ross selected as HBCU All-Star Scholar by White House
Initiative

Baton Rouge native, Sally Ross, always
knew it was her destiny to
attend Southemn University
A&M College.

That destiny was taken a

step further when she was
offered a scholarship and
open arms into the Urban

£ . q n W'"ﬁffﬂ

Southern University Agricultural Research
and Extension Center, in which widened
Ross's expectations.

*She was someone young and

pursuing something amazing

and I was attached to her. |
really admire and respect her,”
Ross said.

Forestry program.

“It was a field that I was
most interested in,” Ross
said.

Sally Ross, standing on the right,

poses for a photo with her mentor,

SU Ag Center Hesearch Scientist
Janana Snowden.

In the program, Ross lived
on the campus throughout
the summer and latched onto
Snowden; and since then,

As a senior and in August 2015, Ross was
selected to be a 2015 HBCU All-Star
Scholar by the White House Initiative for
Historically Black Colleges and Universities

(HBCUs).

Ross was ranked 83rd out of 450 students
that applied for the selection. Becoming an
18% of university students that won the
award.

“l am very honored to be the 2015 HBCU
All-Star for Southern University,” Ross said.
“As the HBCU All-Star, [ will be able to
showcase the advantages of an HBCU
education, represent the interests of HBCU
students and achieve dreams in the public
and educational realm.”

Before her accolades., Ross was a student at
Glen Oaks High School in the Upward
Bound Program when she met a woman of
inspiration, Janana Snowden, Ph.D. of the

Ross has matriculated inside the university
and has become an adult.

“Southern taught me how to be an adult and
an adult that wants to make a change in the
world.” she added. *“But | wish I could show
the Agricultural Center the work I have done
outside of campus."

Ross has worked as an intern for the Oak
Ridge National Laboratory in Tennessee for
three consecutive summers since 2013,
While there, she has worked in the field of
Forestry Management.

After graduating in December, Ross wants
to pursue a Master’s degree in Public
Administration with a concentration in
Public Policy at Southern University.

Ross said she doesn’t have a dream job
because she didn’t want to minimalize her
options as a hard worker.

November 2015

Page 12 Number 243-103



This semester Ross said that it's her time to shine.

Let’s Make Better Food Choices

The SU Ag Center's Families intake recommendations, reading
First-Nutrition Education and nutrition labels, and how to
Wellness System Program (FF- decipher whole grains.

NEWS), continues to cultivate . .

partnerships with inner city social “We appreciate the work that the
service programs and SU Ag Center and Mrs.

Anderson do here at the shelter,
She has been coming to us,
consistently, for over a year and

organizations. On October 26,
2015, East Baton Rouge & East
Feliciana Parish Nutrition

Educator, Marquetta Anderson, ™ (I Mo SR ML
educated the participants at Bishop ) Reid, Daytime Program Coordinator.
e _ While Mrs. Anderson prepared their fresh fruit
importance of making better food choices. salads, the ladies shared what changes they planned
on making in their diets and food selection going

Following the lesson, Mrs. Anderson opened the
floor for questions and a group discussion. The

ladies were especially interested in daily water Contact us with questions or comments regarding
our programs at ellen_mcknight{@suagcenter.com.

forward.

SU Ag Center Launches Nutrition Curriculum for Schools and Communities

The Southern University Ag Center's After the presentation and class
Families First -Nutrition Education and discussion, students participated in a
Wellness System (FF-NEWS) recently hands-on food demonstration preparing
launched its fall nutrition curriculum in -, fresh fruit parfaits. “I like trying new
schools and communities across the state. W = . |~ things when Ms. Kelly comes to our
w » * class,” said sophomore Kenan Moore.

East Baton Rouge and East Feliciana R

Parish Nutrition Educator, Kiyana Moore shared that he was also a Junior
Kelly, reviewed MyPlate and USDA Dietary Horse Show Posse rider with the SU Ag Center and
Guidelines with 9th -12th graders at East Feliciana is considering a career in Agriculture.

High School on Oct. 22,

November 2015 Page 13 Number 243-103



SU Ag Center receives letter of intent to Fund 4-H National Mentoring

Program
The Southern University Ag Center has received a family activities that include the incarcerated parent
letter of intent from the National 4-H Council in the and the caregiver.

amount of $115,920 to fund the Center’s 4-H

National Mentoring Pro . For additional information about the Southemn

University Ag Center's 4-H National Mentoring

The SU Ag Center's 4-H National Mentoring Program contact the grant’s Principle Investigator
Program seeks to rebuild broken family units who Tiffany Wilkerson-Franklin, at

have been impacted by parental incarceration. The tiffany_franklin@suagcenter.com; Co- Principle
program engages youth ages 5 to 17 in interactive Investigator Milissia John-Baptiste, at

milissia_jbaptiste(@suagcenter.com or by calling
225-771-2242.

Extension Educator Forms Community/ Professional Development
Partnerships in Six Parishes

Professional Development is a cornerstone of editing, interview etiquette, and how to dress for
Community Development. Krystle J. Washington, success.

Extension Educator, has formed a
partnership with: Acadiana Works,
Louisiana Workforce Commission,
Acadia Parish Business and Career
Solution Center, Evangeline Parish
Business and Career Solution
Center, St. Landry Parish Business
and Career Solution Center, St.

After initially meeting with Michael
Morris, Director/ Workforce
Investment Board Member of the St.
Landry Parish Business and Career
Solutions Center and Brenda Higdon,
Workforce Development Supervisor; a
needs analysis was conducted and it

Martin Parish Business and Career | prom lefi, Brenda Higdon, Krystle | Was deemed necessary to provide
Solution Center, and Vermillion Washington and Michael Morris professional development for adults in
Parish Business and Career the various parishes.

Solution Center to provide a series of professional
development workshops on resume’ writing and

The workshops are set to begin within the coming
weeks

Southwest Center does Bullying/ Conflict Resolution Seminars at area school

On October 30, Krystle Washington, Extension forms of bullying, how to take an active role from
Educator, educated over 200 students at the Magnet being the bully, bystander, or victim, and effective
Academy for Cultural Arts (MACA) on the many ways to resolve conflicts that occur in everyday life.

e ———————
November 2015 Page 14 Number 243-103



Krystle stated, “I highly commend MACA for “The students at MACA are extremely talented, and

taking the state standards (Under Act 861 enacted in it was amazing to see the theater students come up
2012, which states that school employees are with a skit to role play how to effectively stop
required to participate in four hours of training to bullying and resolve conflicts without belligerence
learn how to detect, prevent and end bullying) and violence,” said Washington.

which only requires teachers to learn how to end
bullying, and being more proactive to involve and
empower students to also take a stand against

October is National Bullying Prevention Month.

: For more information; please contact Krystle J.
bullying, Washington at
Krystle Washington(@suagcenter.com.

Educator seeks to make impactful change to community through the vouth at
Opelousas Jr. High School

On October 13th, Krystle
Washington (Southwest Center for
Rural Initiatives) met with students
in the Century 21 after school
program at Opelousas Jr, High. The
objective and purpose of the meeting
was to expose the youth to character
education and leadership
development through an engaging
lesson on creative writing, anti-

“Before beginning the lesson, | knew that
once | had their attention, | would be able to
get them to participate and provide
feedback in an engaging and thought
provoking manner,” said Washington.

The main goals that were accomplished
were: students were able to work on their
writing skills, realize their potential to
become leaders amongst their peers, and
improve their character through education.

) ) . Youth character education .
bullying, and conflict resolution. and leadership “Community development starts at the

development youth level, because they are our leaders
for tomorrow,” said Washington. “When
assessing the youth and community intersection, |
always reflect on the words of Frederick Douglas,
“It 1s much easier to build strong children, than
repair broken adults,” she added.

Students were initially asked to think
of a time where they were the bully, target, or
bystander. They were then given a “My Story
Journal" to briefly chronicle the event. Lastly,
students shared and mutually came up with better
ways they could have handled the situation they
presented on (conflict resolution).

I —
November 2015 Page 15 Number 243-103



Agribusiness Council of Louisiana Leadership holds Forum in New Orleans

The Agribusiness Council of Louisiana Leadership
Forum: Leadership and Action, held its annual
forum on Wednesday, October 21 at the USDA-
ARS- Southern Regional Research Center in New
Orleans. The primary goal of this organization is to
enhance the competitiveness of Louisiana
Agriculture in the 21st Century.

This year's forum was themed: Ag Leadership &
Animal Rights as a Mainstream Phenomenon.

Dr. Bernard Rollin, University Distinguished
Professor of Colorado State University delivered the
keynote address, and Dr. Douglas Steele, Director,
Texas AgriLife Extension Service discussed,
"Leadership Issues & Efforts from Other
Locations/States."

Approximately 75 people from across the state of
Louisiana attended the meeting. Dawn Mellion-

Patin, Ph.D., Agriculture Specialist, served on the
planning community for the forum. Other
participants from the SU Ag Center included Renita
Marshall, DVM; Zanetta Augustine, Extension
Associate; and Christopher Rogers, Director of
Technology and Communications Services.

The Agribusiness Council consists of a group of
progressive individuals whose primary purpose is to
expand the scope of Louisiana Agriculture by
promoting Research, Education, Business Climate
and Trade,

This forum was sponsored by the Agribusiness
Council of Louisiana, the Audubon Nature Institute,
LSU AgCenter, USDA, the Louisiana Egg
Commission, the Southern University Ag Center,
and Louisiana Department of Agriculture and
Forestry.

November 2015

Page 16 Number 243-103



FACULTY AND STAFF ACCOMPLISHMENTS AND ACTIVITIES

N Southern University Ag Center
Scientists Drs. Yadong Qi,
! Vanessa Ferchaud and Kit L.

#% Chin published a new research
S| article on Roselle hibiscus in

& the Biomedical
Chromatography journal. The
paper is entitled, “Variations in
chemical fingerprints and
major flavonoid contents from
the leaves of thirty-one accessions of Hibiscus
sabdariffa L." This research identified 6 flavonoids
as the major antioxidant compounds in leaves of the

‘ Roselle Hihiscus

SUAREC scientists, Drs. Xiaobing Liu, Kit L.
Chin and Yadong Qi have published a research
article in the International Journal of Plant
Production 9(4):561-579, entitled “Mapping
soybean physiology research based on the web of
science”, 10/2015. The article is available online at
hitps://scisoc.confex.com/scisoc/201 Sam/webprogra
m/Paper91493.himl

SUAREC scientists, Drs. Yadong Qi and Kit L.
Chin have research collaboration with Dr. Jin Wang
of SFA Key Laboratory of Bamboo and Rattan
Science and Technology, International Centre for
Bamboo and Rattan< Chaoyang District, Beijing,
People’s Republic of China and published a

hibiscus research paper entitled “Variations in
chemical fingerprints and major flavonoid contents

November 2015

Roselle hibiscus. Based on these compounds
profiles and contents, the scientists discovered that
27 out of 31 accessions have a great similanity,
while the other 4 accessions are somewhat different
from the main group. This study will be useful for
product development and quality control in
utilization of Roselle hibiscus leaves, The article
can be viewed and downloaded at the following
web link,

hitp://onlinelibrary. wiley.com/doi/10.1002/bme.362

3/epdf.

For more information, please contact Yadong Qi at
yadong.qgi(@suagcenter.com.

from leaves of thirty-one accessions of Hibiscus
sabdariffa L." in Biomedical Chromatography
09/2015. The article can be viewed and downloaded
at the following web link,

http://onlinelibrary. wiley.com/doi/10.1002/bmc.362

4 -

3/epdt.

SUAREC has formed a scientific medicinal
marijuana research consortium with SU-BR to
develop a marijuana research capability and
research endeavor that can address the issues and
concerns of the SUS clienteles. This consortium
consists of Drs. Adell Brown, Interim Chancellor,
Kit L. Chin, Janana Snowden, Yadong Qi,
Renita Marshall and Ms. Ursula Ransburg from
SUAREC and Drs. Rao Uppu, S.N. Murthy, Sanjay

Page 17 Number 243-103




Batra from the Department of Environmental Drs. Cheryl Taylor and Madan Kundu from the
Toxicology and SU Health Research Center and School of Nursing.

Upcoming Events

December 3: Southern University Ag Center’s Research & Extension Center’s 1 Scholarship Gala
Twitter Town Hall. The event will be held from 2 themed, “Sowing Seeds for Future 1890 Scholars:
p.m, — 3 p.m. (CST). Growing the Next Generation.” The gala will be

_ ) held at L' Auberge Baton Rouge at 8 p.m. for more
Deeember17; Souiam Univamey Agrcatincl information, contact Alice Dyson at 225-771-2143.

e — e ——— e ————}
November 2015 Page 18 Number 243-103




November 2015
Southern University Law Center
Board of Supervisors Report

THIRD ANNUAL FINANCIAL AID OPEN HOUSE

The SULC Office of Financial Aid hosted the 3rd Annual Open House
on Monday, October 7, 2015, There were close to 100 students in at-
tendance. A total of 55 students participated in the financial aid ques-
tionnaire drawing, a fun and educational way to win a door prize.

The first year students had an opportunity to meet their financial aid
counselors and ask questions one-on-one. Federal financial aid litera-
ture was distributed to assist in educating students on the following
federal and SULC financial aid topics and procedures:

+ Entrance Counseling

+ Exit Counseling

+ Direct Loan Basics for Students

¢ Your Federal Student Loans-Learn the Basics and Manage your
Debt

SULC Financial Aid pamphlet: Help to get you there

+ Financing Your Legal Education

-

Highlights from Financial Aid Open House

ERyy
\-1“ :l{
L
L
-

GLC

Bl
L

p

R

Tfre

Ql
»

SO0

. @
Thpg g 1O

IMALDE THLS ISRITE

Recruiting Report ...l
Fall Convoeation........cisumssseesd
Trial Advocacy Board ............ 4
Maritime Law Society 4
Studert News i 5

EFRECLAL POINTS OF N MHEEST
¢ Administration & Staff News
+ Faculty News

« Alumni News




ADMINISTRATION &
STAFF NEWS

Michelle Jackson, executive
nagistant to the chancellor,
attended the American Council
on Education Women's Region-
al Leadership Forum in Miami,
Florida, October 28-30, 2015.
The forum provided emerging
women leaders in higher educa-
tion with opportunities o hone
leadership skills in eritical areas
such a8 fundraising, risk man-
agement, crisis response, and
strategic planning,

Pierre ad-dressed "10 years
later—Lessons  learned  when
trying to assess disasters cansed

nar, presented by the Avoyelles
Parish Bar Association, in
Marksville, Louisiana, Friday,
November 6.

Rahim A. Smith, "10, has
joined the Law Center as an
academic counselor and law
instructor in the Office of Aca-
demic Support Programs and
Academic Counseling, effective
October 1. Smith was formerly
employed at the Law Office of
Walton A Barnes, 1l AFLC
Previously, he worked as an
intern for Tumer Sports. An
Emmy-Award winning produe-
er, Smith participated in pro-
Jects such as: Summer Good-
will Games in 1998, New York
City; the Winter Olympics 1998,
Nagano, Japan; and Inside the
NEA from 1968 through 2007,

Alummni share bar exam
preparation and test-
taking strategies with
current students.

Pictured from left are recent grads
William Wilson, Jazmine Torres,
Britney Pennywell, Katrena Por-
ter, and Summar Kasem, who
shared their successful bar prep
strategies with SULC students on
Octoher 27.

RECRUITING REPORT

October 2zo15 Recruitment Visits:

Alabama ABM University — Huntsville, AL

University of Alabama — Tuscaloosa, AL

Auburn University — Auburn, AL

Faulkner University — Montgomery, AL

Florida State University — Tallahassee, FL

Florida ABM University — Tallahassee, FL

Benedict University — Columbia, SC

Maorris College — Sumter, SC

South Carolina State University — Orangeburg, 5C
Claflin University — Orangeburg, SC

Allen University = Columbia, SC

LSAC Houston Law Forum — Houston, TX

Cecil Humphrey Law School (Pre-Law Fair) — Memphi:
TX

Morehouse College — Atlanta, GA

LSAC Atlanta Law Forum — Atlanta, GA

University of Georgia — Athens, GA

Clark Atlanta, Spelman & Morehouse (AUCC) — Atlante
GA

Philander Smith College — Little Rock, AR

Phi Alpha Delta Law Conference/Fair — Washington,
De

Mid-Atlantic Law Fair (Howard University) — Washing;
tan, DC

Louisiana State University — Shreveport, LA

Louisiana State University — Alexandria, LA

Louisiana State University — Baton Rouge, LA

LSU Law School (Pre-Law Fair) — Baton Rouge, LA
Southern University Law Center (Pre-Law Fair) — Bato)
Rouge, LA

Huston-Tillotson University — Austin, TX

Dillard University — Baton Rouge, LA

Xavier University — New Orleans, LA

Southern University New Orleans — New Orleans, LA
LATINOJUSTICE/PRLDEF (Pace University) — New
York, NY

Professor and former pu-
pil reunite at Taylor Porter
Law Firm

Taylor Porter welcomed its newest
associate Eelley R. Dick, Jr., ‘15,
left, the former law student of Tay-
lor Porter partner Preston Castille,
Jr. SULC adjunct professor. Cas-
tille also taught current Taylor
Porter attorneys Cindy Amedee,
‘o8; Katia Bowman. '08; and
Ne'Shira Millender, '14, magna
cum laude.



FALL CONVOCATION

Antonio *Tony” Clayton, ‘g1, senior partner in the law firm of Clayton,
Fruge', and Ward, gave advice on building and maintaining a successful
legal career as featured speaker for the SULC 2015 Fall Convocation on
Wednesday, October 21, 2015.

Clayton is a successful prosecutor and high profile attorney, in addi-
tion to being an author, former judge, and longtime appointee on the
Southern University Board of Supervisors. He is willing to share with law
students lessons learned since his law school days that have benefitted
him in the practice.

The Plaguemine, Louisiana, native and Oscar, Louisiana, resident
began his private law practice in 1991, after earning a degree in politi-cal
science at Southern University Baton Rouge and the juris doctor at the
Law Center. In the ensuing vears, his legal career expanded into the public
sector as he served in such capacities as prosecutor in the Parish of East
Baton Rouge and special prosecutor for the 18th Judicial District Court.

In 1997, attorney Clayton became one of the youngest judges in Loui-
siana when appointed by the Louisiana Supreme Court as an ad hoe dis-
trict judge. Clayton was inducted into the 2015 SULC Hall of Fame,

Antonio "Tony” Clayton, ‘g1

FACULTY NEWS

Prof. Michelle Ghetti will
contribute her criminal law
expertise next spring to the
2016 Spring Judicial College
Conference in Lafayette,
Louisiana, when she and
other panelists will discuss
cases highlighting statutes
and case law in the areas of
criminal law and procedure.
The annual conference will
be held in April 2016.

Prof. Chris Odinet was
recently elected secretary of
the board of directors of the
Central States Law Schools
Association (CSLSA). The
organization hosts a scholar-
ship conference each fall
bringing together law pro-
fessors from across the re-
gion to share ideas and cur-
rent research projects on a
broad range of topics. Click
here for more information:
hitp:/ /www.cslsa.us. Odinet
gave a presentation during a
junior faculty scholarship
exchange in Boston, Mas-
sachusetts, on Friday, Octo-
ber 16, 2015, titled “Cities as
Consumers.” His current
resparch project involves
exploring and analyzing the
lending environment for
municipal borrowers from a
consumerist approach. The
exchange was hosted by the
University of Massachusetts
School of Law.

Prof, Tracie Woods and
SBA President Patrick J.
Harrington have been
appointed to serve on the
Louisiana “Task Force on
Higher Education Discipli-
nary Process for Sexual As-
sault on Campus.” They are
a part of the 15-member task
force that was created by
Senate Resolution 11, au-
thored by Senator J. P. Mor-
rell, to stody the post-
secondary education disci-
plinary process for campus
rape and sexual assault in
Louisiana.




ALUMNI NEWS

Eric Claville, ‘o6, director of
the Hampton University Pre-
lnw Institute, is co-host for a
new radio talk show, *The Claville
Report; Policy, Law, and Politics
“The Claville Repart” will air every
fifth Friday at noon and aims to
educate African Americans in the
Hampton Roads area on the ef-
fects that laws, politics, and poli-
cles have on their Hves.

Merrick Cosey, "13, recently
Joined the Office of General Coun-
sel for the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) ut its
in Washington, D.C.
As pttormey-pdvisor within EPA's
Employment and Labor Practice
Gronp, Cosey will provide legal
advice (o agEncy  management
concerning adverse employment
setions and labor relations mat-
ters. In addition, he will represent
the sgency in defense ltigation
nasocinted with these actions.

Kimberly Slay Holmes, ‘86, is
now assistant commissioner for
the Minnesota Department Heve-
nue. In that capacity, Holmes
supervises all civil and criminal
tux litigation for the state of Min-
nesota,

Deldre Deculus Robert, "oo,
has besn appointed by Louisiana
Bar President Mark Cunningham
to the Corporate Counsel and Gov-
ernment Lawyer Task Force. The
purpase of the task foree is to pro-
pose strategies for the LSBA to
engage corporate counsel and gov-
rrnmt attormeys more effective-
V.

Judge-Elect Tarvald Smith,
‘95, will be sworn in o the newly
ereated Baton Rouge City Court at
-large seat, ot 3 pom., Wednesduy,
Movember 235, at City Court. Smith
was recently elected to the bench,
gurnering an  overwhelming 52
percent of the vote and avoiding a
runoff election by defeating four
opponents. A solo practitioner and
served as the public defender for
Baker, Louisiana, Smith also
served as & member of the East
Baton Rouge Parish School Board
for almost 12 years.

Erin Monroe Wesley, ‘oz,
executive vice president and chief
operating officer, Baton Rouge
Area Chamber, will be bonored as
ane of 11 Baton Rouge Area volun-
teer activists for 2015 by the
Emerge Cenler, at an awards
loncheon, 11 a.m., Friday, Novem-
ber 13. The awwards luncheon hon-
ors those who give of their time
and talents to organizations across
the community, and raises eritical
funds for the center.

NEW TRIAL ADVOCACY BOARD

Prestige, autonomy, and wealth were three rewards that Antonio “Tony® Clayton, '91,
encouraged the New Trial Advocacy Board to look forward to when they graduate from
law school. Clayton was the guest speaker at the Induction and Pinning Ceremony of the
first Southern University Law Center Trial Advoeacy Board, on October 12. Seventeen
third-year students were individually recognized with a certificate and pinned by their
respective recommending trial advocacy professors.

The event highlighted the newly formed board with Prof. Shenequa Grey, Trial Advo-
cacy Board faculty advisor, as the mistress of ceremony. The new board was designed “to
give new lawyers a competitive edge in the future,” Grey explained. The purpose of the
Trial Advocacy Board is to offer a select group of students opportunities to target and
sharpen their trial advocacy skills.

i

Above: Judge Wilson Fields, at right, administers
the oath to the members of the newly formed
Trial Advocacy Board. Antonio *Tony™ Clayton,
at left, shares his thoughts on the rewards of
W completing law studies at SULC, during the Trial
& Advocacy Board Induction and Pinning Ceremao-
ny.

MARITIME LAW SOCIETY EVENT

Maritime Law Society Lunch & Speaker--Maritime attorney Jerry Dodson, a senior
partner at Dodson & Hooks, APLC, addressed a luncheon hosted by the Maritime Law
Society on September 23. The lunch was sponsored by Dodson & Hooks, APLC. Pictured
from left: Daryl Causey, Society president; Interim Chancellor John Pierre; Dodson; Troy
Parria, Society vice president; and Christine Wells, Society secretary.




STUDENT NEWS

Third-year students Rachel Dunaway
and Ashleigh Mazerac have been selected to
receive the 2015 Baton Rouge Bar Foundation
(BRBF) Scholarship,

This scholarship, which is jointly sponsored
by the Baton Rouge Bar Association, Inc., and
the Baton Rouge Bar Foundation, is awarded to
an upper-class student on the basis of financial
need, academic achievement, community service
and exemplary character,

Tiffany Monroe, a second-year Evening Division
student, recently passed the U.S. Patent Bar Exam. Monroe
received official word from the U.S. Patent Office that she is
a registered patent agent as of October 6, 2015,

Her goal is to eventually work as a patent attorney for
the U.S. Patent and Trademark office. At the 2004 National
Society of Black Engineers conference in Dallas, she attend-
ed a seminar presented by an engineer who had gone to law
school and was working as a patent attorney. Some 10 years
later, Monroe is on that same path.

Third-year student Brittany Tassin is a volunteer legal
intern in the legal department at the Sexual Trauma Awareness
and Response (STAR) Center. Read about Tassin’s volunteer
work for positive change in the STAR newsletter at: https://
brstarcenter.wordpress.com/2015/11/06/agents-of-change-
brittany-tassin/.




Southern University and A&M College
Chancellor’s Report

lo the

Southern Umiversity Board of Supervisors

November 27, 2015
I. S, Clarle Adm. Bldge.
Batan Rouge, LA 70813




Southern University and A&M College at Baton Rouge
CHANCELLOR'S REPORT

SIGNIFICANT
ACHIEVEMENT/ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Department of Rehabilitation and Disability Studies Receives Grants
Totaling $§13.1 million

The Department of Rehabilitation and
Disabilities Studies recently received
$13.1 million in grants to fund the

campus’ Vocational Rehabilitation
Technical Assistance Center for
ac - Targeted Communities [VRTAC-TC)

".-:ﬂ [Project E3).
w

The center was awarded $2.5 million
per year for five years, 2015-2020, a
total of $12.5 million, and funded by
the Rehabilitation Services
Administration, US. Department of
Education.

The center is designed to improve
vocational rehabilitation (VR) outcome
of persons with disabilities from

{Left 1o Right) Dr. Alo Dutta, associate professor, o f 2 g
o : traditionally marginalized communities

Department of Rehabilltation and Disabilities Studies
Is principal Investigator, and Dr. Madan M. Kundu,
professor and chair £ project director for a $12.5

Project E3's team will provide intensive
million Department of Ed grani

and focused technical assistance to all 80
State-Federal Vocational Rehabilitation
agencies and 20 targeted communities across the LS, and its territories.

The anticipated outcome will increase vocational rehabilitation participation of persons with
disabilities from these targeted communities leading to greater quality of employment
outcome.




The Chancellor's Report to the
Southern University Board of Supervisors
November, 2015

| 2

Dr. Madan M. Kundu, chair and professor, SUBR Department of Rehabilitation and Disabilities
Studies serves as the project director and Dr. Alo Dutta, associate professor, is the principal
Investigator.

"We will have the opportunity to work on a national project to better the advantage and get
Southern on the map, so that we can serve the whole country dealing with people with
disabilities. There are 80 state vocational rehabilitation agencies so they will get some services
from us," Dr, Kundu stated.

This national project is a collaboration of SUBR, University of Wisconsin-Madison, University
of Wisconsin-Stout, George Washington University, University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign,
and the Council of State Administrators of Vocational Rehabilitation.

In addition, the department received a $600,000, three-year (2015-2018) research grant from
the National Institute on Disability, Independent Living, and Rehabilitation Research, U.5.
Department of Health and Human Services.

Project CLAIM is designed to provide differential academic and employment-support services
to transition SUBR students with disabilities leading to improved college completion and
employment outcome,

The project will be implemented in collaboration with the Departments of English and
Mathematics, and the Office of Disability Services on the Baton Rouge campus.

SUBR Army ROTC Class of
1990 Donates $1.5K to Jaguar
Battalion

The Army ROTC class of 1990 donated
$1.5K to SU's Jaguar Battalion. The
meet and greet was organized to
welcome SU's former cadets and
introduce them to 25 current cadets at
SUBR. Each cadet was assigned a
mentor from the group of alumni to
help assist them as they navigate their
way through college and after
graduation.




The Chancellor's Report to the
Southern University Board of Supervisars
November, 2015

| 3

"It's fantastic. It's a privilege. It's been really invigorating in the time already, to meet the
cadets, meet the staff, and come back to what | think are Howard halls," said Colonel Charles
Dalcourt, Active Duty Officer and Chief of Aviation at the 11.5. Army Central.

Colonel Dalcourt shared how his mentorship as an Army ROTC cadet at SU positively impacted
his career. According to him, "The time here at Southern gave a great foundation. One of the
biggest things is integrity. Going through challenges and experiencing different things
worrying, you have to stand tall and be confident in your abilities. You have to display
competence, and all of those were our watchwords and hallmarks in the program here."

During the meet and greet, SU's Army ROTC class of 1990 donated $1.5K to SU's Army ROTC
program. "The primary thing is for [the cadets] to realize the value of what they're getting at
SU." said Colonel Dalcourt. "Particularly, the added features of the ROTC program that
encourages and will allow them to better embrace leadership roles and greater responsibility
be it civilian or military life. After almost 30 years of being in the military, or associated with
the military, it's been a fantastic foundation that this place establishes.”

With the donation and the mentorship support, SU's Army ROTC class of 1990 is looking
forward to partnering with their mentees and seeing the ROTC program grow.

2010 Urban Forestry Conference

Members of Southern University’s Urban Forestry Program recently participated in the Society
of American Foresters National Convention held in Baton Rouge. The group contributed three
scientific oral presentations, one organized scientific session, eight poster presentations and
one organized urban forestry educational tour.,




The Chancellor's Report to the
Southern University Board of Supervisors
November, 2015

| 4

The Society of American Foresters (SAF) is the largest and oldest forestry society in the nation
The convention was held at the Baton Rouge River Center in Louisiana (November 3-8) and
was titled, "Recreating Forestry, the Confluence of Sciences, Society, and Technology.”

Dr. Zhu Hua Ning, Professor of Urban Forestry served on Louisiana SAF, the National
Convention Organizing Committee. Other participating Urban Forestry faculty members
included Dr. Kamran Abdollahi, Urban Forestry Program Leader, Dr. Fulbert Namwamba, Dr.
Yadong Qi.

Overall, 20 graduate and undergraduate students participated and presented the latest cutting
edge research and teaching findings to more than 1200 registered national convention
participants.

The SAF Leadership, the National Association of University Forest Resources Programs
(NAUFRP), the USDA Forest Service (USDA-FS) and the USDA-NIFA were extremely supportive
and praised the 5U Urban Forestry Program for its contributions to the state and the nation for
over 23 years.




	Cover Page - November 2015
	BoardPacketNovember
	Agenda pg1
	Request to Approve Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (CEA) pg 2
	Office of the Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs & Enrollment Management pg 3
	Southern University Personnel Action Forms pg 4
	Employee Eligibility Requirements for the Affordable Care Act (ACA) pg 5
	Drug Free Workplace Policy pg 6
	SUNO, Message from the Chancellor pg 7
	SUAG, Chancellor's Report pg 8
	SULC, Chancellor's Report, pg 9
	SUBR, Chancellor's Report pg 10


